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) . Members  of
GORMAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

. Pennsylvania Institute of Certified Public Accountants
CerTiFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ' Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Board of School Directors
Hamburg Area School District
Windsor Street

Hamburg, PA 19526

We have performed the Single Audit of the Hamburg Area School District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2010, and have enclosed the Single Audit reporting package.

The Single Audit was done to fulfili the requirements of OMB Circular A-1 33_, which entailed:
1. An audit of the basic financial statements, and our opinion thereon;
2. A review of compliance and on internal control over financial reporting based on an audit
of the financial statements performed in accordance with Governmental Auditing

Standards, and our report thereon;

3. An examination of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, and our report
thereon; and,

4. An opinion on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and a
review of internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, and
our report thereon.

As part of our report, we have enclosed our management letter.

Respectfully submitted,

v flisani?s P

December 12, 2010

1825 Franklin Street

Northampton, Pennsylvania 18067 - 1573

tele} 61077262/ 1280~ fax) 610/ 262/ 1756
www.gormanandassociates.org

-



Board of School Directors

Mr. Steven Keifer, Superintendent
Hamburg Area School District
Windsor Street

Hamburg, PA 19526

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamburg Area School District for the
year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2010.

As stated in our engagement ietter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to
express opinions about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with the U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements
does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities, including having compensating controls in
place to ensure our preparation of your financial statements and note disclosures are not materially
misstated.

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our
meeting about planning matter on July 27, 2010.

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Hamburg Area School District are described in the notes to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted during this past year and the existing policies were
properly applied. We did not discover any transactions entered into by the District that lacked authoritative
guidance or consensus. In addition, there are no significant transactions affecting the financial statements
that have been recognized incorrectly in the wrong year.

Accounting estimates, which are part of the significant accounting policies, are an integral part of the
financial statements and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial
statements was depreciation taken on capital assets based upon the estimated useful life of each asset
and calculated on the straight-line basis of depreciation, the actuary's estimate of Other Post Employment
Benefits, and the valuation of derivative instruments. We have evaluated the factors and assumptions
used to develop these estimates and have determined the estimate to be reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

We wish to inform you that the disclosures in your financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
From time to time, certain disclosures are more sensitive than others due to their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures involve capital assets and long-term debt.

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter provided to us on December 12, 2010. We advise the governing body to request this
letter from management for their review. In conjunctions with their representation, we wish to inform you
we did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management and had no disagreements
with your management. To our knowledge, management did not find a need to converse with any other
. independent accountant on any related accounting or auditing issue.

1825 Franklin Street
Northampton, Pennsylvania 18067 - 1573

tele} 610/ 262/ 1280 fax} 610/ 262/ 1756
www.gormanandassociates,org

GORMAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C- :\d;ti:;; T_Eititute of Certified Public Accountants

Pennsylvania Institute of Certified Public Accountants
CerTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants




Board of School Directors - Mr. Steven Keifer, Superintendent

In addition, the representation letter provided to us, by management, confirmed there were no uncorrected
misstatements. Management has recorded all of our adjusting journal entries, and has agreed to the
conversion entries necessary to convert governmental funds and proprietary funds to governmental
activities and business-type activities, respectively,

In accordance with auditing standards, generally accepted in the United States of America, we have
acquired a sufficient understanding of the District and its environment, including its internal control, fo
assess the risk of material misstatementis of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to
design the nature, fiming, and extent of further audit procedures that were necessary to express an
opinion on the 2009-10 basic financial statements.

Our consideration of the District's internal control components was not designed for the purpose of
making detailed recommendations and would not necessarily disciose all significant deficiencies within
the components. Our audit procedures have been appropriately adjusted to compensate for any
observed significant deficiencies. The following three paragraphs define the three different types of
deficiencies that can occur:

A control deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
‘that s less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

As the primary purpose of our audit is to form an opinion on the basic financial statements, you will
appreciate that reliance must be placed on adequate methods of internal control as your principal
safeguard against errors and fraud which audit procedures may not disclose. The objective of internal
control over financial reporting is fo provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use and that financial records are reliable for preparing
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and for maintaining the
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of internal control
should not exceed the related benefits; to operationalize this concept, management is required to
formulate estimates and judgments of the cost/benefit ratios of alternative controls.

There are inherent limitations that should be recognized in considering the potential effectiveness of
intemal control over financial reporting. Errors can result from misunderstanding of instructions, mistakes
of judgment, carelessness, fatigue, and other personnel factors. Control procedures whose effectiveness
depends upon the segregation of duties can be circumvented by collusion or by management. What's
more, any projection of internal control evaluations to future periods is subject to the risk that the
procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or due to the deterioration of the
degree of compliance with control procedures.




Board of School Directors - Mr. Steven Keifer, Superintendent

As an adjunct to our audit, we remained alert throughout for opportunities to enhance internal controls and
operating efficiency. These matters were discussed with management as the audit progressed and have
subsequently been reviewed in detail to formulate practical recommendations. We wish to thank your staff
for their courtesies and cooperation, which facilitated the efficient performance of audit procedures. The
remainder of this letter will explain any internal control deficiencies discovered during the audit, other
auditor recommendations, and other information pertinent to the District.

A control deficiency is determined to be considered a material weakness or significant deficiency based
upon the magnitude of the problem as it pertains to a particular opinion unit. In other words, what is
considered a significant deficiency in one fund may only be a control deficiency in another fund of greater
size.

The following section in this governance/management letter is separated by
categories based on importance, with any material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies listed in the beginning:

CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

Grants

During our review of grant revenue, we discovered a few problems with the District classifying federal
grants info state source revenue accounts. The Summer Youth grant (a minor award), which is a federal
ARRA grant, was wrongly classified as state revenue using state source code numbers. This particular
deficiency required us to notify the business manager on July 27, 2010, because this grant came from the
American Recovery & Reinvestment Act. There were six awards (Learn & Serve, Wall Street West (WIA),
Summer Youth (ARRA), CFF — Coaches, H1N1 Clinic, and Keys2Work grants). The various
administrators, who apply for these grants, must do a better job informing the business office the
particulars pertaining to each award. '

Since each grant has a folder, we are recommending a form be developed and attaéhed into the inner
sleeve of the folder outlining where the grant award came from, project number (if applicable), CFDA
Number (if applicable), name of award, award amount, and time period to expend the award.

Fundraising Activities

As you are aware, fundraising activities are not allowed to be done by governments in the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania. We realize that during athletic events outside organizations may take the opportunity to
collect donations for various charitable purposes. During this past years audit, we came across three
separate deposits pertaining to these activities made in the Athletic Fund. Two of these deposits pertained
to booster clubs with corresponding checks written to the clubs for the money deposited in the Athletic
Fund. The other deposit pertained to donations received and later disbursed to the American Cancer
Society.

We wish to caution the District that the Athletic Fund is a governmental fund. As such, it is part of the
government’s operations, and should not be used as a conduit for fundraising activity deposits and
disbursements.

Food Service Fund

During our review of the ending balances of accounts within the food service fund, we discovered the
financial position of the fund was misstated by $120,212, because the manager failed to correct an error in




Board of School Directors - Mr. Steven Keifer, Superintendent

posting health insurance premiums. Fortunately, the busmess manager helped us is properly allocating

this error to the correct accounts.

In the future, we recommend the food service manager review the year end balances for potential material
mispostings before the audit is conducted.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Journal Entries.

During the course of the audit, we review journal entries made by staff during the year. Currently, the
business office keeps these journal entries commingled with receipts in monthly folders. The only
evidence provided is a batch proof report of the journal entry. There are a Iot of entries that do not have
supporting documentation attached explaining the reason for the entry.,

We would like to suggest improving the recordkeeping of journal entries by maintaining ail entries in a
three ring binder, numbered in numeric sequence, with proper documentation attached explaining the
reason for the entries made, with proof showing why the entries were made, and separated by a monthly
tab. In this manner, management and auditors will be able to find information on a more efficient basis.

Athletic Fund —- Game Receipts

Although the District has improved their controls associated with athletic events in past years, we are
recommending an additional procedure to enhance the game sheets. Presently, the athletic director puts
the beginning and ending ticket stubs on the game sheet to reflect the number of tickets sold. We are
recommending the actual tickets sold and counted at each event should be maintained by the athletic
office in a lunch bag separated for each event. The bag should be marked on the outside with the date
and name of the event, along with the number of tickets sold stored inside the bag.

The reason for this recommendation is for us to verify during the audit process that the rest of the controls
do actually exist and operate correctly on an ongoing basis. Without seeing the actual tickets sold, there is
neo guarantee that the amount deposited is accurate.

OTHER INFORMATION

Reclassification of Funds

As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 54 on fund balance reporting, certain special revenue
funds will be reclassified starting with the 2010-11 fiscal year. The Capital Reserve Fund will be
reclassified as a Capital Project Fund. Keep in mind, there are legal limitations on what items can be
expended from this fund regardless of the type of governmental fund it is classified. You have a choice
pertaining to the Athletic Fund. For external financial reporting purposes, the Athletlc Fund must be
eliminated and be reported as part of the General Fund.

However, for intemal purposes you may choose to keep this fund active. In this case, we will consolidate
the Athletic Fund with the General Fund in preparation of your external financial statements.

If you choose the latter option, be careful in preparing your General Fund budget to include athletic
appropriations in function 3250 and a corresponding estimated revenue account for game revenue. Any
portion the general fund contributes to the Athletic Fund, should be coded and budgeted to function 3250.
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New Federal Reporting Requirements

Starting in the 2012 calendar, optional for the 2011 calendar year, the employers share of health
insurance premiums paid on behalf of each employee will be required to go on each employee’s W-2 that
is filed with the IRS. In addition, beginning January 1, 2011, non-prescription over-the-counter health aids
will no longer be allowed to be paid or reimbursed through a Flexible Spending Arrangement (FSA) Plan.

In addition, starting in the 2012 calendar year, year end reporting requirements pertaining to Form 1099s
will be expanded to include: all payments made in excess of $600, per year, to any vendor (individual,
partnership, corporation, LLC or LLP) for services rendered or goods purchased will require the filing of
Form 1099 with all pertinent information including taxpayer identification numbers.

These federal reporting requirements are always subject to future changes by the U.S. Congress.

This letter is required by our standards and has been combined with, what we previously referred to as,
the management letter. The intent of this letter is to communicate with those charged with govemance on
matters pertaining to the audit and includes information that we believe can help you correct or improve
operating efficiency, under the limitations of staff availability, within the District.

Respectively submitted,

Ol illiits P

Gorman & Associates, P.C.

December 12, 2010
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Board of School Directors
Hamburg Area School District
Windsor Street

Hamburg, PA 18526

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamburg Area
School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the District's
basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the District's management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. .

We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing standards, generally accepted in the United States
of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmen{ Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made, by management, as well as evaluating the overal
financial staterment presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamburg Area School District as of June 30, 2010;
as well as the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the
budgetary comparison of the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles, generally accepted in the United Staies of America.

As discussed in Note 2-F to the financial statements, Hamburg Area School District was required to
implement GASB Statement No. 53 this fiscal year. The new accounting principle is associated with
Derivative Financial Instruments. ‘

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated December 12,
2010, on our consideration of the Hamburg Area Schooi District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

1825 Franklin Street

Northampton, Pennsylvania 18067 - 1573
tele} 610/ 262/ 1280 fax} 610/ 262/ 1756
www.gormanandassociates.org



Board of Directors
Hamburg Area School District

Management's Discussion and Analysis, on pages 10 to 18, and the Schedule of Funding Progress on
page 63 are not a required part of the financial statements, but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and eXpress no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Hamburg Area School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, listed in the table of contents, are presented for the purpose of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements of the Hamburg Area School
District. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,

Ao eritn, PO

December 12, 2010




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Hamburg, Pennsylvania

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
Required Supplementary Information (R3l)
(UNAUDITED)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

The Hamburg Area School District's Management's Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) is designed' to provide
an overview of the District's financial activity and identify changes in the District's financial position.

The following Discussion and Analysis provides an overall review of the Hamburg Area School District's
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Financial Highlights

During the year, the District's general fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $1,167,526, resulting in an
increase in fund balance of $1,167,526. The primary reasons for this surplus were expenditures coming
in $1,254,853 less than budgeted, which offset all revenues and other financing resources coming in
($87,327) less than budgeted.

The Board of Directors passed a 2009-10 budget with a real estate tax increase of .25 mills. The increase
was necessitated by contractual obligations, PSERS rate increases, the continuing increases for special
education costs, charter schools, and financing of debt. Approximately 70 acres are currently under
construction for several large multi-retailers in Tilden Township; with a planned completion date of late
2010 to early 2011. Future plans are also underway for additional commercial developments in Tilden
Township and a commercial land redevelopment plan in the Hamburg Borough.




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements. The remainder of this

overview highlights the sfructure and contents of the statements.

a) Figure A-1

A. Major Features of the District-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

District-wide
Statements Governmental Funds | Proprietary Funds | Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire District Activities of the District | Activities the Instances in which
(except fiduciary that are not proprietary | District operates the District
funds) or fiduciary, such as similar to private administers
general operating and | businesses, such resources on behalf
capital projects. as food services. of someone else,
such as scholarship
programs and
student activities
monies.
Required e Statementof | « Balance sheet s Statement of s Statement of
financial net assets e Statement of net assets fiduciary net
statements » Statement of revenues, « Statementof | assets
activities exger;]ditures,‘ Changes in . Slgatemer}t of
and changes in changes in
fund balances Net assets fiduciary net
L4 StatemEnt Of assets
cash flows
Accounting Accrual Modified accrual Accrual accounting | Accrual accounting
Basis and accountingand | accounting and current | @nd economic and economic
measurement | economic financial focus resources focus resources focus
focus resources focus
Type of All assets and Generally assets All assets and All assets and
assetfiability | liabilities, both expected to be used | liabilities, both liabilities, both
information financial and up and liabilities that | financial and short-term and
: capital, shortterm | come due duringthe | capital, and short- | long-term; funds do
and long-term. year of soon term and long- not currently
thereafter; no capital term. contain capital
assets or long-term assets, although
liabilities included. they can.
Type of Allrevenues and | Revenues forwhich | Allrevenues and | All additions and
inflow/outflow | expenses during | cash is received expenses during | deductions during
information year, regardless of | during or soon after the year, the year, regardless
when cash is the end of the year; regardless of when | of when cash is
received or paid. | expenditures when cash is received or | received or paid.
goods or services paid.

have been received
and the related liability
is due and payable.

-11-




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

District-Wide Reporting —

Two statements provide comprehensive information regarding both the short and long term operation of
the district. All assets and liabilities are presented and the full accrual accounting is used. These
statements are:

Statement of Net Assets — Identifies the assets owned by the district and the debt owed by the
district. Over time this statement measures the financial health of the district by revealing whether
net assets are increasing or decreasing.

Statement of Activities — identifies the costs of providing services to the district and the financial
resources obtained to finance the services.

Both statements report two activities:

Governmental Activities — Most of the district's programs and services are reported here including
instruction, support services, operation of plant, pupil transportation and student activities.
Property taxes and state and federal subsidies finance most of this activity.

Business-type Activities — The school district operates a food service operation. Students and
staff are charged fees to cover some of the costs of operation. State and federal breakfast and
lunch programs further subsidize food service costs.

District Fund Reporting -

Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. The District’'s funds fall into three categories -

Governmental Funds — Major governmental funds of the District are the General Fund, Capital
Reserve Fund, and Capital Projects Fund. Non-maijor funds include the Athletic Fund and Debt
Service Fund. These funds are reported using the modified accrual method of accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The
governmental funds present a short-term view of the District's operations and the services it
provides.

Proprietary Funds — Reports the activiies of the Districts Food Service operation. These
statements mirror those as provided by the Business-type acfivities in the Governmental-wide
statements, while providing more detail and additional information such as cash flows.

Fiduciary Funds — The School District acts as a trustee to manage assets belonging to others.
The Scholarship (Private Purpose) Fund and Student Activities Funds are reported on a separate
statement of fiduciary net assets and statement of the changes in fiduciary net assets because
these funds may not be used to finance district operations.




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The District's net assets were $30,539,008 at June 30, 2010, an increase of $850,768 {(or 2.9%). The
governmental net assets increased by $826,376 (or 2.8%), while business-type net assets increased by
$24,392 or 5.2%.

Table A-1
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Net Assets
2010 2008
Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental type mental type’
Activities Acflvities Total Activities Activitios Total
Current and Other Assets $ 17,036,601 $ 405289 § 17,441,890 $ 14111332 §  33BA7B 8 14,448,507 (1)
Non-Current Assels 58,311,374 194,949 58,506,323 58,616,887 216,501 58,833,388
Tolal Assets 75,347,975 600,238 75,948,213 72,728,219 851,676 73,279,895
Current and Other Liabilities 26,551,661 42,159 26,503,820 26,264,413 30,412 26,295,325 (1)
Long-term Liabiiities 18,752,318 62,977 '18,815,.205 17.246.089 50,171 17,206,240
Total Liabilities 45,303,979 105,136 45,409,115 43,510,482 81,083 43,591,565
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, 20,559,140 216,5M 20,775,641 18,438,442 216,501 18,654,943
net of refated debt
Restricted 360,332 360,332 130,816 130,816
Unrestricted 9,124,524 278,601 9,403,125 10,648,362 254,209 10,902,671
Total Net Assets § 30043906 § 495102 $ 30530008 | § 29217620 § 470710 §. 29,688,330

(1) internal balances do not represent assets or liabilities of the total primary government

The largest component of Net Assets is the Investment in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt. It
represents the current value of capital assets (less depreciation) less the related debt outstanding to
finance the acquisition of such assets. The remaining net assets are comprised of unrestricted balances
net of restricted balances.

The results of this year's operations as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. Table A-2
takes information from that statement and rearranges it slightly. All revenues are reported in the first
column. Specific charges, grants, revenues and subsidies that directly relate to specific expense
categories are represented to determine the final amount of the District's activities supported by other
general revenues. The largest general revenues are the Basic Education subsidy provided by the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and real estate taxes assessed to the owners of property in the Hamburg
Area School District,




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
" Management's Discussion and Analysis

Table A-2
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Changes in Net Assets
2010 2008
Govarnmental  Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activites Total Activitles Activites Total

|Revenues
Program Revenues .
Charges for Services 147,686 '$ 729,667 $ 877,353 | % 149,527 750,855 $ 900,382
QOperating grants and coniributions 5,992,698 563,154 6,555,852 5,113,883 491,598 5,605,481
Capital grants and contributions 655,137 - 655,137 697,041 - 697,041
General Revenues
Property (axes 19,854,036 - 19,854,036 19,573,454 - 19,573,454
Other taxes 2,068,618 - 2,068,518 2,08C.818 - 2,080,818
Grants, subsidies and contributions 6,543,959 - 6,543,969 6,891,239 - 6,891,239
Other (2,528,604} 1,078 (2,827,628) 491,875 3,733 495 508

Total Revenues 32,633,438 1,293,897 33,927,335 34,997,937 1,245,186 36,244,123
Expenses
Instruction 18,073,144 - 18,073,144 17,562,679 - 17,562,679
Instructional student support 2,154,120 - 2,154,120 2,400,131 2,400,131
Administrative and financial support 2,443,570 - 2,443,670 2,730,687 2,730,687
Cperation and maintenance of plant 3,800,409 3,800,409 3,130,541 3,130,541
Pupil fransportation 1,702,145 1,702,145 1,679,427 - 1,679,427
Student activities 584,840 584,840 582,330 " 582,330
Community sefvices 34,979 34,979 17,364 - 17,364
Interest on long-term debt 2,302,277 2,302,277 1,624,047 - 1,624,047
Unallocated depreciation expenss 711,578 711,578 711,683 - 711,683
Food services - 1,269 808 1,269,606 - 1,299,227 1,290.227

Total Expenses 31,807,082 1,269,505 33,076,567 30,438,889 1,299,227 31,738,118
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 826,376 § 24,392 % 850,768 | § 4,553,048 (53,041} $ 4,506,007

Table A-3 shows the total cost of program expenses and the net costs of programs offset by charges for
services and grant revenue. Net Cost of Services is supported by unrestricted grants including the basic
education subsidy, local taxes, and other miscellaneous revenues. Local real estate taxes support 64% of
the total cost of governmental activities in the school district.




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Table A-3
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Governmental Activities
2010 2009
Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of

Functions/Programs Services Services Services Services
Instruction $ 18,073,144 $ 13310948 $ 17562672 3 13,730,323
Instructional Student Support 2,154,120 1,912,725 2,400,131 2,167,418
Administrative 2,443 570 2,334,877 2,730,687 2,626,440
Operation and Maintenance 3,800,409 3,732,508 3,130,541 3,051,458
Pupil Transportation 1,702,145 808,915 1,679,427 741,383
Student Activities 584,840 488,047 582,330 506,006
Community Services 34,979 34,803 17,364 18,631
Interest on Long-term Debt 2,302,277 1,679,140 1,624,047 927,006
Unallocated Depreciation Expense 711,578 711,578 711,683 711,683
Total Governmental Activities $ 31,807,062 $ 25,011,541 $ 30,438,889 § 24,478,438
Less:
Unrestricted Grants and Subsidies 5543969 __ 6,891,239
Total Gontribution from Local Taxes

and other Revenues $ 18,467,572 $ 17,587,199

The only Business-type entity of the school district is the Food Service operation. As shown in Table A-4,
the Food Service Department ended the fiscal year with $24,392 in revenues net of costs. A decrease in
cost of services is primarily attributable to personnel and food supplies. Subsequently, the increase in net
revenue is due to operational cost savings. Food service operations have been evaluated in light of the
current costs of operations and lunch prices have been adjusted for the 2010-11 year to reflect the.
contractual increased costs of personnel and anficipated food supplies.

The statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for this Proprietary Fund will further
detail actual results of operation.




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Table A-4
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2010
Business-type Activities

2010 . 2009
Total Cost of Total Cost of

Functions/Programs Services Net Revenue Services Net Revenue
Food Services $ 1,2985505 § 23316 § 1,299,227 § (56,774)
Less:

Investment Earnings 1,076 3,733

(Gain/Loss Asset Sale - -
Total business-type Activities $ 24,392 $ (53,041)

The District Funds:

At June 30, 2010, the District governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $12,648,542. This
represents an increase of $1,,697,735 from the prior year. The reason for this increase is due to several
factors. The Capital Reserve and General Funds increased $527,313 and $1,167,526 respectively.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The School District's investment in capital assets net of accumulated depreciation decreased $(51,610) or
0.9%. Tables A-5 and A-6 summarize the capital assets of both the governmental and business activities
of the Schoal District,

Table A-5
Capital Assets — Net of Depreciation
Governmental Activities

6/30/2010 6/30/2009 Change

Land and Land Improvements 3 883,088 % 911,521 $ (28,453)
(net of Accum Depreciation)

Building and Building Improvements 28,774,261 29,397,904 (623,643)
(net of Accum Depreciation)

Furniture and Equipment 663,776 776,722 (112,946)
{net of Accum Depreciation)

Construction in Progress 27,521,242 26,807,810 713,432

TOTAL $ 57,842,347 $ 57,893,957 § {51,610)




HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Table A-6
Capital Assets — Net of Depreciation
Business Activities

6/30/2010 6/30/2009 Change

Furniture and Equipment
(less Accum Depreciation) $ 194,949 § 216,501 $ (21,552)

Total $ 194,949 $216,501 $ (21,552)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

As of June 30, 2010, the District had outstanding debt of $38,275,000. The district retired $2,775,000 of
its debt during the 2009-10 fiscal year Figure A-7 shows outstanding debt at June 30, 2010.

Table A-7
Outstanding Debt
2010 2009
General Gbligation Bonds
-Series of 2007 4,555,000 5,375,000
-Series of 2009 {G.O.N.) - 22,390,000
-Series of 2010 21,390,000 ;
-Series of 2009 5,300,000 5,885,000
-Series of 2009A 7,030,000 7,400,000
Total $ 38,275,000 § 41,050,000
" LOOKING TO THE FUTURE:
CAPITAL PROQJECTS:

The District has completed the process of consolidating five aging elementary buildings into two facilities.
The first building, Tilden Elementary, has been demolished and construction is complete for a new facility.
Students returned fo the new Tilden Elementary as of the 2009-10 school year. Discussion continues on
the 2™ phase of construction relative to our Perry Elementary facility.

17-



HAMBURG AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

BUDGET 2009-10

Rising costs for bond payments, energy costs, special education, technology, charter schools, and
contractual obligations, have necessitated a millage increase for 2010-11. The increase of .25 mills from
24.96 to 25.21 mills was needed to balance the budget. This means that property owners will pay $25.41
for each $1,000.00 of assessed valuation.

The 2010-11 budget includes major enhancements to the technology, covering major energy cost
increases, and substantial curriculum/extbook enhancements. Further cost constraints come from the
rate increase in special education, and charter school enrollment growth.

Revenue constraints continue relative to the current economic conditions. Real estate transfer and interim
tax revenues are down sharply along with a dramatic decrease in bank interest eamnings. In addition, final
outcome of the state budget discussions could have a significant impact on our revenue projections.

The comparison of revenue and expenditure categories is as follows:

Table A-8
BUDGETED REVENUES
' 2010-11 2009-10
Local 62.5% 63.1%
State 35.3% 33.9%
Federal/Other 2.2% : 3.0%
BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
2010-11 2009-10
Instruction 54 7% 54.6%
Support Services 30.6% 30.1%
Non Instruction/Community 0.4% 0.3%
Fund Transfers/Debt 14.3% 15.0%

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT:

If you have questions about this report, or wish to receive additional financial information please contact
Stuart Whiteleather, Business Manager/Board Treasurer at Hamburg Area School District, 701 Windsor
Street, Hamburg PA 19526, 610-562-2241.

-18-
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Hamburg Area School District
Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2010

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivaients $ 13,228,782 % 341,573 § 13,570,355
Investments 1,400,000 - 1,400,000
Receivables, net 1,539,558 - 1,539,558
Internal Balances - 1,850 - (1)
Due From Other Governments 664,874 17,925 682,799
Other Receivables 153,733 - 153,733
Inventories : 44 654 43,941 88,505
Prepaid Expenses - - -
Other Current Assels 5,000 - 5,000
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 17,036,601 405,289 17,440,040
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred Outflows - Interest Rate Swap - - -
Land 552,760 - 552,760
Site Improvements (net of depreciation} 330,308 - 330,308
Building and Bldg. Improvements {net of depreciation) 28,774,261 - 28,774,261
i Furniture and Equipment (net of depreciation) ' 663,776 194,849 858,725
‘ Construction in Progress 27,521,242 - 27,521,242
} Bond Issue Costs {net of amortization} 469,027 - 469,027
‘ TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 58,311,374 164,949 58,506,323
‘ .
i TOTAL ASSETS $ 75,347,976 § 600,238 $ 75,946,363
|
| LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Internal Balances % 1,860 $ - 8 -
Due to cther governments - - -
Accounts Payable 1,208,116 13,2189 1,221,335
i Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations 23,406,478 - 23,406,478
3 Accrued Salaries and Benefits 1,727,246 13,767 1,741,013
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings - - -
Insurance Claims Payable - - -
Deferred Revenue 59,658 15,173 74,831
Other Current Liabilities 148,313 - 148,313
Total Current Liabilities 28,551,661 42,159 26,591,970
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Bonds Payable 14,462,234 - 14,462,234
Other Retirement Benefits - - -
Net OPEB Obligation 694,608 34,445 728,053
Long-Term Portion of Compensated Absences 726,714 28,632 755,246
Derivative Instrument Liability 2,868,762 - 2,868,762
TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,303,979 105,136 45,407,265
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt 20,559,140 194,949 20,754,089
RESTRICTED FOR: .
Retirement of Long-Term Debt - - -
Capital Projects {deficit) - - -
Other Restrictions 360,332 - 360,332
Unrestricted (deficit) 9,124,524 300,163 0,424,677
TOTAL NET ASSETS 30,043,996 495,102 30,539,098
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 75,347,976 $ 800,238 § 75,946,363

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
{1} Internal balances represent the amount owed to or from the iwo types of activities within fhe Primary Government. Since internal balances de not represent
assets or liabilities of the total Primary Government, their balances are eliminated in the "total" eolumn {GASE Statement No. 34, para. 58).
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Hamburg Area School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2010

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital asseis used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental
funds. The cost of the assets is $70,308,789 and the accumulated
depreciation is $12,466,442.

Additicnal receivables established that do not meet the availability
criteria reflected in the fund financial statements. This amount
represents the difference between the prior year receivables and the
current year receivables established under the accrual basis of
accounting.

Property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds, but not in the government-
wide statement of net assets.

The governmental funds follow the purchase method of inventory;
therefore no inventory is reflected on the balance sheet. However,
the statement of net assets uses the consumption method of
inventory.

An estimate of incurred but not reported clairms (IBNR) on the
District's self-insurance plan is reported as an expense on the
government-wide statement of activities, but not in the fund financial
statements.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
liahilities in the funds. Long-term liabllities and related items at year
end consist of:
Bonds payable $ (37,283,208)

12,648,542

57,842,347

34,526

1,348,779

44,654

(177,298)

Accrued interest on the bonds (124,262)
Compensated absences (726,714)
Derivative Instrument Liability (2,868,762)
Net OPEB Obligation {694,608) {(41,697,554)
TOTAL NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 30,043,996

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hamburg Area School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 1,697,735

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by

- which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Depreciation expense $ 812,731
less - capital outlays 840,437 27,706

Some of the capital assets acquired this year were financed with capital

leases. The amount financed by the leases is reported in the

governmental funds as a source of financing, On the cther hand, the

capital leases are not revenues in the statement of activities, but rather

constitute long-term liabilities. -

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of the capital
assets is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds
from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net

assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of fixed assets
sold. {79,315)

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months

after the District's fiscal year ends, they are not considered as "available”

revenues in the governmental funds. Deferred revenues decreased by -
this amount this year. 201,610

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. 2,775,000

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses--compensated

absences (vacations), other post employment benefits, and special

termination benefits (early retirement)—are measured by the amounts

earned during the year. In the governmental funds; however,

expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial

resources used. This amount represents the difference between the

amount earned versus the amount used. (279,459)

SUB-TOTAL IN CHANGES BETWEEN BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 4,343,277




Hamburg Area School District

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SUB-TOTAL IN CHANGES BETWEEN BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the
amount reported in the governmental funds because interest is
recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus
requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of
activities, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues,
regardless of when it is due. This would include accumulated interest
accreted on capital appreciation bonds. The additional interest accrued
in the statement of activities over the amount due is shown here.

in the statement of activities, certain operating revenues are recognized
when earned versus the revenues uging the modified accrual basis of
accounting in the fund statements that are recognized when the funds
are available. As such, the amount shown here represents the difference
between earned revenues and revenues that are earned, but not
available.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing deht increases long-term liabilities in the statement of
assets. Refunding bond issues becomes a use of cutrent financial
resources in governmental funds, but refundings represent payments of
long-term debt in the statement of net assets. This figure represents the
difference between bond proceeds and refunding payments made to
paying agents.

The governmental funds use the purchase method of inventory, where all
items purchased are charged to expenditures. However, the statement
of activities is reflected on the consumption method of recording
inventory type items; therefore, this adjustment reflects the inventory
difference.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 4,343,277

(668,246)

{2,834,236)

{8,445)

{5,974

$ 826,376




Hamburg Area School District
Statement of Net Asseis
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from other funds
Due From Other Governments
Other Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other Current Assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Building & Bidg. Improvements (net)
Machinery & Equipment {net)
Other Long-Term Receivables

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Due to Other Funds
Accounts Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Deferred Revenue
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-Term Portion of Compensated Absences
Net OPEB Obligation

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, with no related debt
Restricted for Legal Purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

FOOD NON-MAJOR
SERVICE FUNDS TOTAL

$ 341573 § - $ 341573
1,850 - 1,850

17,925 - 17,925
43,941 - 43,941
405,289 - 405,289
194,949 - 194,949
194,949 - 194,949

$ 600,238 $ - $ 600,238
] - § - § -
13,219 - 13,219
13,767 - 13,767
15,173 - 15,173
42,159 - 42,159
28,632 - 28,532
34,445 - 34,445
62,977 - 62,977
105,136 - 105,136
194,949 194,949
300,153 - 300,153
495,102 - 495,102

$ 600,238 § - $ 600,238

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Hamburg Area School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES:
Food Service Revenus

Other Operating Revenues
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Purchased Property Service
Other Purchased Services
Supplies
Depreciation
Dues and Fees
Other Operating Expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments
Contributions and Donations
Gain/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
State Sources
Federal Sources
Interest Expenses

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions
Transfers in (out)

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

NET ASSETS - ENDING

FOOD NON-MAJOR
SERVICE FUNDS TOTAL
$ 701,842 $ - $ 701,842
27,984 - 27,984
720,826 - 729,828
442,576 - 442,576
207,076 - 207,076
1.290 - 1,290
20,132 - 20,132
5,576 - 5,576
548,402 - 548,402
21,552 - 21,552
22901 - 22,901
1,269,505 - 1,269,505
(539,679} - (539,679)
917 - 917
75,438 - 75,438
487,716 - 487,716
564,071 - 564,071
24,392 - 24,392
24,392 - 24,392
470,710 - 470,710
$ 495,102 $ - $ 495,102

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hamburg Area School District
Statement of Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
As of June 30, 2010

PENSION AND
PRIVATE OTHER EMPLOYEE
PURPOSE BENEFIT
TRUST TRUST AGENCY

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ -3 - $ 159,679
Investments - - -
Due from Other Funds - - -
Other Receivables - - 22
Prepaid Expenses - - -
Other Current Assets - - -

TOTAL ASSETS $ - $ - $ 159,701

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ - % - $ -
Due to Other Funds - - -
Due to Student Clubs - - 159,701
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - - -
Payroll Deductions and Withheldings - - -
Other Current Liabilities - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES - - 169,701

NET ASSETS
Restricted ‘ - - -
Unrestricted - - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ - $ - $ -

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hamburg Area School District
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

PENSION AND

PRIVATE- OTHER EMPLOYEE
PURPOSE BENEFIT
: TRUST FUND TRUST FUNDS
ADDITIONS ‘
Contributions $ - % -

Transfers from other funds - -
INVESTMENT EARNINGS:
Interest and Dividends . - -
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - -
Less investment expense : ' - .
TOTAL ADDITIONS - -

DEDUCTIONS
Transfers to other funds - -
Administrative charges - ' -
Scholarships - -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS - -

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - -

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR - -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ - $ ' -

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hamburg Area School District
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Note 1 - Description of the School District and Reporting Entity
School District

The Hamburg Area School District is located in Hamburg, Pennsylvania. The District's tax base consists
of five Townships; Perry, Upper Tulpehocken, Upper Bern, Tilden, and Windsor, and three Boroughs;
tamburg, Shoemakersville, and Strausstown.

The Hamburg Area School District is a unit established, organized and empowered by the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania for the express purpose of carrying out, on the local level, the Commonwealth's obligation
to public education, as established by the constitution of the Commonwealth and by the School Law Code
of the same (Article II; Act 150, July 8, 1968).

As specified under the School Law Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, this and all other school
districts of the state "shall be and hereby are vested as, bodies corporate, with all necessary powers to
carry out the provisions of this act." (Article II, Section 211).

Board of School Directors

The public school system of the Commonwealth shall be administered by a board of school directors, to
be elected or appointed, as hereinafter provided. At each election of school directors, each qualified voter
shall be entitled to cast one vote for each school director to be elected.

The Hamburg Area School District is governed by a board of nine School Directors who are residents of
the School District and who are elected every two years, on a staggered basis, for a four-year term.

The Board of School Directors has the power and duty to establish, equip, furnish, and maintain a
sufficient number of elementary, secondary, and other schools necessary to educate every person,
residing in such district, between the ages of six and twenty-one years, who may attend.

In order to establish, enlarge, equip, furnish, operate, and maintain any schools herein provided, or to pay
any school indebtedness which the school district is required to pay, or to pay any indebtedness that may
at any time hereafter be created by the school district, the board of school directors are vested with all the
necessary authority and power annually to levy and collect the necessary taxes required and granted by
the legislature, in addition to the annual State appropriation, and are vested with all necessary power and
authority to comply with and carry out any or all of the provisions of the Public School Code of 1949.

Administration

The Superintendent of Schools shall be the executive officer of the Board of School Directors and, in that
capacity shall administer the School District in conformity with Board policies and the School Laws of
Pennsyivania. The Superintendent shall be directly responsible to, and therefore appointed by, the Board
of School Directors. The Superintendent shall be responsible for the overall administration, supervision,
and operation of the Schoal District.

The Business Manager, recommended by the Superintendent and appoeinted by the Board of School
Directors, shall supervise and coordinate all business aspects of the School District. In this capacity, he or
she shall be responsible to insure that all work accomplished by him/her, or by persons under his/her
supervision, is in the best interests of the Hamburg Area School Disfrict. The Business Manager is directly
responsible to the Superintendent.

-33-



Hamburg Area School District
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Reporting Entity

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that
are included to insure that the financial statements of the School District are not misleading. The primary
government consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the
School District. For Hamburg Area Schoot District, this includes general operations, food service, and
student related activities of the School District.

Hamburg Area School District is a municipal Corporation governed by an elected nine-member board. As
required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements are to present Hamburg
Area School District (the primary government) and organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable. The Schoot District is financially accountable for an organization if the School
District appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing board and (1) the School District is able
to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the
School District is legally entitied to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the School
District is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide
financial support to, the organization; or the School District is obligated for the debt of the organization.
Component units may also include organizations that are financially dependent on the School District in
that the School District approved the budget, the issuance of debt, or the levying of taxes. The Hamburg
Area School District does not have any component uniis.

Joint Ventures
Berks Career and Technology Center

The School District is a participating member of the Berks Career and Technology Center. The Center is
run by a joint committee consisting of members from each participating district. No participating district
appoints a majority of the joint committee. The board of directors of each participating district must
approve the Center's annual operating budget. Each participating district pays a pro-rata share of the
Center's operating costs based on the number of students attending the Center from each District. The
District's share of the Center's operating costs for 2009-10 was $931,545.

On dissolution of the Berks Career and Technology Center, the net assets of the Center will be shared on
a pro-rata basis of each participating district's current market value of taxable real property as certified by
the Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board. However, the District does not have any equity interest in
the Center as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, except a residual interest in the net assets upon
dissolution that should not be reflected on the basic financial statements. Complete financial statements
for the Center can be obtained from the Center's administrative office at 1057 County Road, Leesport, PA
19533,

Jointly Governed Organizations
Berks County Intermediate Unit

The Schoo! District is a participating member of the Berks County Intermediate Unit (BCIU). The BCIU is
run by a joint committee consisting of members from each participating district. No participating district
appoints a majority of the joint committee. The board of directors of each participating district must
approve the BCIU's annual operating budget. The BCIU is a self-sustaining organization that provides
services for fees to participating districts. As such, the District has no on-going financial interest or
financial responsibility in the BCIU. The BCIU contracts with participating districts to supply special
education services, computer services, and acts as a conduit for certain federal programs.




Hamburg Area School District
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. On June
15, 1987, the GASB issued a codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The School District also applies Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989, to its business-type activities and to its proprietary funds, provided they do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of these accounting policies are described below
and, where appropriate, subsequent pronouncements will be referenced.

A. Basis of Presentation

The Scheool Districts basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets, a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more
detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the School District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities
of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between those activities
of the School District that are governmental and those that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type
activities of the School District at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between
direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the School District's governmental
activities and for one business-type activity of the School District. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services
offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a
particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the School District, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with
program revenues identifies the extent to which each business activity or governmental function is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the School District.

Fund Financial Statements During the year, the School District segregates transactions related to
certain School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of
the School District at this more detailed level. The focus of govemmental and enterprise fund financial
statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. The fiduciary funds are reported by type. :

B. Fund Accounting

The School District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a
fiscal and accounting entity with a self balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.




Hamburg Area School District
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental Funds Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions
typically are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the
purposes for which they may o must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they
will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance.
The following are the School District's major governmental funds:

General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School District. It is used to account for all
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

The District has established a Capital Reserve Fund in accordance with the PA School Laws. This
fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources as outlined by school laws that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Reserve Fund

This fund was created in accordance with Section 1432 of the Municipal Code. As such, the PA
Department of Education has decided this fund should be classified as a major fund regardless of
whether or not GASE’s major fund criteria are met.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital equipment and facilities (other than those financed by the proprietary
fund). The District had the following Capital Project Fund:

2008 Construction Fund

This fund received the proceeds from the $2,050,000 General Obligation Note — Series of 2008.
The purpose of this issue is to provide funds for and towards costs of the acquisition and
construction of certain capital costs, including the stadium project. This fund was closed during
this past fiscal year. '

Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds focus on the determination of changes in net assets, financial
position and cash flows and are classified as enterprise funds.

Enterprise Funds Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services. The School District's major enterprise fund is:

Food Service Fund

This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service operations of the
School District.

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The
fiduciary fund category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-
purpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the School
District under a trust agreement for individuals, private organizations, or other governments and are
therefore not available to support the School Districts own programs. Agency funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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Hamburg Area School District
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

C. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of
the School District are included on the statement of net assets.

Fund Financial Statements All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e,
expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the
manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financial statements therefore include reconciliations with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental
funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all enterprise funds are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund
net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The
statement of cash flows provides information about how the School District finances and meets the cash
flow needs of its enterprise activities. :

D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on
the financial statements. Govemment-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Government funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary
funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis
of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the
presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions. Revenue resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual
basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year
in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value
in return, include property taxes, grants, entittements and donations. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitiements and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be
used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the School District
must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which
the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

E. Budgetary Process

An operating budget is adopted prior to the beginning of each year for the General Fund on the medified
accrual basis of accounting. The General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally required.
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In accordance with Act 1 of 2008, the Board shall annually, but not later than the first business meeting of
January, decide the budget option to be used for the following fiscal year. The Board shall approve either
the Accelerated Budget Process Option or the Board Resolution Option.

Accelerated Budget Process Option

Under this option, a preliminary budget must be prepared 150 days prior o the primary election. Under
this Option, the preliminary budget must be available for public inspection at least 110 days prior to the
primary election. The Board shall give public notice of its intent to adopt the preliminary budget at least 10
days prior to the adoption. The adoption must occur at least 90 days prior to the primary election.

If the preliminary budget exceeds the increase authorized by the Index, an application for an exception
may be filed with either a Court of Common Pleas with jurisdiction or PDE and made available for public
inspection. The Board may opt to forego applying for an exception by submitting a referendum question
seeking voter approval for a tax increase, in accordance with Act 1.

The final budget shall include any necessary changes from the adopted preliminary budget. Any reduction
required as the result of the failure of referendum shall be clearly stated. The final budget shall be made
available for public inspection at least 20 days prior to final adoption. The Board shall annually adopt the
final budget by a majority vote of all members of the Board prior to June 30.

Board Resolution Option

Under the Board Resolution Option, the Board shall adopt a resolution that it will not raise the rate of any

. tax for the following fiscal year by more than the Index. Such resolution shall be adepted no later than 110
days prior to the primary election. At least 30 days prior to adoption of the final budget the Board shall
prepare a proposed budget. The proposed budget shall be available for public inspection at least 20 days
prior to adoption of the budget. The Board shall give public notice of its intent to adopt at ieast 10 days
prior to adoption of the proposed budget. The Board shall annually adopt the final budget by a majority
vote of all members of the Board by June 30.

L.egal budgetary control is maintained at the sub-function/major object level. The PA School Code allows
the School Board to make budgetary transfers between major function and major object codes only within
the last nine months of the fiscal year, unless there is a two-thirds majority of the Board approving the
transfer. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal period. Budgetary information reflected in the
financial statements is presented at or below the level of budgetary control and includes the effect of
approved budget amendments.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts
in the PDE 2028 when the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final
budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts after all 2009-10 budget transfers.

Encumbrances

Any encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not represent GAAP expenditures or liabilities but
represent budgetary accounting controls. The General Fund Budget is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting, except that budgetary basis expenditures include any encumbrances issued
for goods or services not received at year-end and not terminated.
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The actual results of operations are presented in accordance with GAAP and the District's accounting
policies do not recognize encumbrances as expenditures until the period in which the goods or services
are actually received and a liability is incurred. Any encumbrances are presented as a reservation for
encumbrances on the balance sheet of the General Fund. If budgetary encumbrances exist at year-end,
they are included in the fund financial statements to reflect actual revenues and expenditures on a
budgetary basis consistent with the District's legally adopted budget.

F. Change in Accounting Principle

During this past fiscal year, the District was required to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No.
53 on Derivative Instruments. The Derivative Instruments and disclosures are more fully explained in Note
5.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

H. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Proprietary Fund type considers all highly Ilqwd
investments with a maturity of three months or less, when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

Investments

In accordance with GASB Statement 31, investments are stated at fair value, except:
a) Non-participating interest eaming investment contracts are recorded at amortized cost;

b} Money market investments and participating interest earning investment contracts that mature
within one year of acquisition are recorded at amortized cost; and,

c) Investments held in 2a7-like pools (Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust, and
Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund) are recorded at the pool's share price.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds". Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as "internal balances".

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not avaitable for appropriation
and are not expendable available financial resources.
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Property Tax Levy

Property taxes, which were levied during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, are recognized as revenue
in the fund financial statements when received by the District during the fiscal year and also estlmated to
be received by the District within sixty (60) days after the fiscal year ended.

Property taxes that were levied during the current fiscal year, which are not estimated to be received within
sixty (60) days after the fiscal year-end, are recorded as receivable and deferred revenue in the fund
financial statements.

In the government-wide financial statements, all property taxes levied during the fiscal year are recognized
as revenue, net of estimated uncollectible amount.

Inveniories

On government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on a
first-in, first-out basis, and are expensed when used. A physical inventory taken at June 30, 2010, shows
$44 654 as an asset in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets
and $43,941 as an asset in the business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net
assets.

Inventory type items in governmental funds ufilize the purchase method; that is, they are charged to
expenditures when purchased.

Inventory type items in Proprietary Funds use the consumption method, in which items are purchased for
inventory and charged to expenses when used. The only Proprietary Fund of the District is the Food
Service Fund. Inventory within this fund consists of donated commaodities, which are valued at U.S.D.A's
approximate costs, and purchased food.

Inventories on hand at June 30, 2010, consist of:

Purchased Food & Supplies $ 24,513
Donated Commodities 19,428
TOTAL $ 43,941
Prepaid Expenses

In both the government-wide and fund financial statements, prepaid expenses are recorded as assets in
the specific governmental fund in which future benefits will be derived.
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Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activifies column of the government-wide statement of net assets, but are not
reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the enterprise funds are reported both
in the business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and in the
respective funds.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date
received. The School District maintains a capitalization threshold of two thousand five hundred ($2,500)
dollars. The School District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized, the costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's
life are not. Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets utilized by the enterprise funds is
also capitalized.

All reported capital assets except land, certain land improvements and construction in progress are
depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line methed over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and improvements 20 -50 years 20 -50 years
Fumiture and Equipment 5-20 years 5 -20 years
Vehicles up to 10 years NIA

Compensated Absences

The School District reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16,
"Accounting for Compensated Absences”. Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are
earned if the employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and
it is probable that the School District will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off
or some other means.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination method. An accrual for earned sick
leave is made to the extent that it is probable that benefits will result in termination payments. The liability
is an estimate based on the School District's past experience of making termination payments.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that is
normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources. In enterprise funds, the
entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund liability.
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Long-Term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligafions are reported as liabilities in the applicabie governmental
activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, bond issuance
costs, and deferred amounts on refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using
modification of the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount and any deferred amount on refundings. Bond issuance costs are reporied as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt,

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources while discounts or premiums on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses and sources, respectively. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as support service expenditures.

Reclassification

Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the June 30, 2010, presentation of government-
wide financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting versus the governmental fund financial
statements on the modified accrual basis.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, consiruction or improvement of those assets. Net
assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by higher governmental body or through external restrictions imposed by
‘creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The School District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Balance Reserves

The Schoo! District reserves those portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for specific future
use or which do not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not available for
appropriations for expenditures. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is
available for appropriation in future periods.

Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of fixed
assets, or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted fo capital acquisition and
construction. There was no outside capital contributions this past fiscal year in the proprietary fund.

Note 3 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

A, Explanation of cerfain differences between the govemmental fund balance sheet and the
govemment-wide statement of net assels.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between "fund balance -total governmental '
funds" and "net assets - governmental acfivities" as reported in the government-wide statement of net
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assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payabile, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds".

The details of this $41,697,554, difference are:

Bonds payable $ 38,275,000
Less: Deferred charge on refunding {to be amortized as
interest expense) (696,238)
Less:.Deferred charge for issuance costs (to be amortized
over life of debt) (469,026)
Less: [ssuance discount (to be amortized as interest expense) (26,570)
Add: Issuance premium (to be amortized as a credit to
interest expense) 200,042
Accrued interest payable 124,262
Derivative Instrument Liability 2,868,762
Net OPEB Obligation 694,608
Compensated absences 726,714

Net adjustment to reduce "fund balance - total governmental funds"”
to arrive at "net assets - governmental activities” $ 41,697,554

B. Explanation of Differences between Govemmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expendifures
and Changes in Fund Balances and the Statement of Aclivities

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used on the government fund
statements and district-wide statements certain financial transactions are treated differently. The basic
financial statements contain a full reconciliation of these items. Differences between the governmental
funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance and the statement of activities fali
into one of three broad categories. The amounts shown in the columns on the following page represent;

a) Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when
they are considered "available", whereas the statement of activities reporis revenues when
earned. Differences in long-term expenses arise because governmental funds report on a
modified acerual basis whereas the accrual basis of accounting is used on the statement of
activities. The long-term expenses reported below recognize the change in vested employee
benefits.

b) Capital related differences include (1) the difference between proceeds for the sale of capital
assets reported on governmental fund statements and the gain or loss on the sale of assets
as reported on the statement of activities, and (2) the difference between recording an
expenditure for the purchase of capital items in the governmental fund statements, and
capitalization and recording of depreciation expense on those items as recorded in the

. statement of activities.

¢) Long-term debt transaction differences occur because long-term debt proceeds are recorded
as revenue and both interest and principal payments are recorded as expenditures in the
governmental fund statements. In the statement of activities, long-term debt proceeds are
recorded as a liability; principal payments are recorded as a reduction of liabilities.
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Explanation of Differencés hetween Governmental Fund Statements and District-Wide Statements

TOTAL

TOTAL FOR

GOVERN- LONG-TERM CAPITAL LONG-TERM
MENTAL REVENUES!  RELATED DEBT STATEMENT
FUNDS EXPENSES ITEMS ITEMS OF ACTIVITIES

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES ‘

LOCAL SOURCES: i
Property Taxes $ 19,753,080 § 100,956 $ : - % - § 19,854,036
Taxes levied for specific purposes 1,967,861 100,655 - - 2,068,516
Interest and investment earnings 162,936 - (2,868,762) (2,705,826)
Miscellaneous 100,822 34,526 14,649 - 149,997
Contributions and Donations 3,540 - - - 3,540
Charges for Services 50,917 - - - 50,917
Grants, subsidies & contributions not restricted 6,543,969 - - - 6,543,969
Proceeds from Bond Issues - - - - .

INTERMEDIATE SQURCES: -
Charges for Services 96,769 - - 06,769
Operating & Capital granis and contributions 32,000 - - 32,000

STATE SOURCES: : -
QOperating & Capital grants and contributions 4,611,657 - - - 4,611,657

FEDERAL SOURCES: -
Operating & Capital grants and contributions 2,004,178 - - - 2,004,178

SPECIAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS: -
Proceeds from Bond Issues 22,390,000 - - (22,390,000}

Bond Premium 168,538 {168,538} -
Gain cr (Loss} on disposal of assets 17,649 - (93,964) - (76,315)
TOTAL REVENUES 57,903,916 236,137 (79,315) (25,427 300) 32,633,438

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES .
Instruction 17,897,498 159,134 16,512 - 18,073,144
Instructional Student Support 2,103,682 29,501 20,937 - 2,154,120
Admin. & Fin'l Support Services 2,543,137 73,073 (12,549) (160,091} 2,443 570
Oper. & Maint. Of Plant Svcs., 3,743,761 23,337 33,311 - 3,800,409
Pupil Transportation 1,701,048 1,087 - - 1,702,145
Student activities 612,536 (708} {26,988) - 584,840
Community Services 34,979 - - - 34,979
Capital Outlay 770,508 - (770,508) - -
Debt Service 26,799,031 - “ (24,496,754) 2,302,277
Transfers Quf - - - - -
Depreciation - unallocated - - 711,578 - 714,578

TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES 56,206,180 285,434 (27,707) (24,656,845) 31,807,062
NET CHANGE FOR THE YEAR $ 1,697,736 § {49,297} $ (51,608) $ (770,455} $ §26,376
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Note 4 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Compliance with finance related legal and contractual provisions

The District has no material violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions.
B.  Deficit fund balance or net assets of individual funds.

No individual fund contains a deficit fund balance or net assets at June 30, 2010.

C. Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds

No individual fund, which had a legally adopted budget, had an excess of expenditures over
appropriations.

D. Budgetary compliance

The District's only legally adopted budget is for the General Fund. All budgetary transfers were made within the last
nine months of the fiscal year. The District cancels all purchase orders open at year-end; therefore, it does not have
any outstanding encumbrances at June 30, 2010.

Note 5 - Detailed notes on all funds and account groups
Assets

Cash

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2010,
$8,090,388 of the District's bank balance of $10,159,078 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ -
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging finendial instifution -
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank's trust department
not in the District's name 8,090,388
TOTAL $ 8,090,388

Reconciliation to Financial Statements

Uncollateralized Amount Above $ 8,000,388
Plus; insured Amount 2,068,690
Less: Outstanding Checks : {417,320)
Carrying Amount - Bank Balances 8,741,758
Plus: Petty Cash 100
Deposits in Investment Pools Considered Cash Equivalents 5,388,176
Less: Cerfificates of Deposit considered Investment by School Code {1,400,000)
TOTAL CASH PER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS $ 13,730,034
Investments

As of June 30, 2010, the District had the following investments;
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Investment Maturities Fair Value
Certificates of Deposit Varies $ 1,400,000
PA Local Gov't Investment Trust 1,989,179
PA School District Liquid Asset Fund 3,418,897
US Treasury Notes -
M & T Bank -

TOTAL $ 6,788,176
Interest Rale Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure 1o fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The District has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices to certain credit ratings. As of
June 30, 2010, the District's investment in the PA School District Liquid Asset Fund, and the PA Local
Government Investment Trust were rated AAA by Standard & Poor's.

Conceniration of Credit Risk

The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer. Of the Governmental
Activities' investments, 21.70% is in Certificates of Deposit. Of the Capital Reserve Fund's invesiments,
5.19% is in collateralized certificates of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an
outside party. The District does not have any uninsured investments.

Reconciliation to Financial Statements

Total Investments Above $ 6,788,176
Less: Deposits in Investment Pool Considered Cash Equivalents (5,388,176)

Total Investments Per Financial Statements $ 1,400,000
Properly Taxes

Property taxes are levied on July 1, on the assessed value lisied, as of that date, for all taxable real
property located in the District. Assessed values are established by the County Board of Assessments. All
taxable real property was assessed at $843,697,600. In accordance with Act 1 of 2008, the District
received $828,416 in property tax reduction funds for the 2009-2010 fiscal year. The tax rate for the year
was $2.496 per $100 of assessed valuation or 24.96 mills.
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The property tax calendar is:

July 1 - Full year tax assessed for current year.

July 1 - August 31 - Discount period during which a 2% discount is allowed.
September 1 - October 31
November 1 - January 31

Face amount of tax is due

A 10% penalty is added to all payments.

February 1 - Allunpaid taxes become delinquent and are turned over to the
County Tax Claim Bureau for Collection.

The School District, in accordance with GAAP, recognized the delinquent and unpaid taxes receivable
reduced by an allowance for uncollectible taxes as determined by the administration. A portion of the net
amount estimated to be collectible, which was measurable and available within 80 days, was recognized
as revenue and the balance deferred in the fund financial statements.

Receivables

Receivables for the government's individual major funds, non-major, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate
as of year end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are:

CAPITAL CAPITAL FOOD NON-
GENERAL RESERVE PROJECT SERVICE MAJOR FIDUCIARY

FUND FUND FUNDS FUND FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL

RECEIVABLES:
Interest $ - % 5013 § -3 - § -8 - % 5013
Taxes 1,175,053 - - - - - 1,175,053
Accounts 114,194 - - - 22 114,216
Intergovernmental 564,874 - - 17,925 - - 682,799
GROSS RECEIVABLES 1,854,121 5,013 - 17,925 - 22 1,877,081
Less: Allowance for .
Uncollectibles - - - - - - -
NET RECEIVABLES $ 1954121 § 5013 § - § 17,925 § - $ 22 $ 1,977,081

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet eamed. At the end
of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and uneamed revenue reported in
the governmental funds were:

Schedule on Deferred Revenue - Unavailable and Unearned
" UNAVAILABLE UNEARNED

Delinquent Property Taxes - General Fund $ 984,273 % -
Tuition -
Grants drawdowns prior to meeting
eligibility requirements - 59,658
TOTAL $ 984,273 § 59,658
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Capital Assets
Capital asset balances and activity for the year ending June 30, 2010, were:

BEGINNING ENDING
BALANCE INCREASES DECREASES BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Capital Asseis not being depreciated:;
Land $ 552,760 % - % - § 552,760
Construction in Progress 26,807 810 713,432 - 27,521,242
“Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 27,360,570 713,432 - 28,074,002
Capital Assefs being depreciated;
Site Improvements 1,210,228 - - 1,210,228
Buildings and Bldg. Improvements 38,756,583 57,076 - 38,813,659
Furniture and Eguipment 2,926,088 69,929 (785,117} 2,210,900
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED 42,892,899 127,005 (785,117) 42,234,787
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Site Improvements (851,467) (28,453) - (879,920)
Buildings and Bldg. Improvements (9,358,679) (680,719} - (10,039,298)
Furniture and Equipment (2,149,366) (103,560) 705,802 (1,547,124)
TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEFPRECIATION (12,359,512} (812,732) 705,802 (12,466,442)
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED
NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 30,533,387 (685,727) (79,315) 29,788,345
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS,
NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION $ 57,803,957 § 27,705 § (79,318) § 57,842,347
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Furniture and Equipment $ 938,277 § -3 - § 938,277
Less accumulated depreciation (721,776} (21,552) - (743,328}
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS,
NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION $ 216,501 § (21,652) $ - § 194,948
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*DEPRECIATION EXPENSE WAS CHARGED TO GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS AS FOLLOWS:

Regular Instruction

Special Instruction

Vocational Instruction

Other Instruction

Adult Instruction

Community College Instruction
Pupll Services

Instructional Staff Sves.
Administrative Services

Health Services

Business Services

Operation & Maintenance of Plant Sves.
Pupil Transportation

Central Services

Other Support Services
Student Activities

Community Services

Depreciation - unallocated
TOTAL DEPRECIATION FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$

16,512

2,440
18,351
200
146
1,874
55,268

1,515

4,147

711,578

812,731

The Districts governmental activities disposed of $785,117 of obsolete equipment during the year.
$705,802 depreciation was recaptured, resulting in a loss from disposition of $76,315.

Construction Commitments

The District had the following Construction Commitments at June 30, 2010:

CONTRACT EXPENDED OUTSTANDING
NEW HAMBURG (TILDEN)} ELEMENTARY EAST AMCUNT TO 6/30/10  COMMITMENTS
DUAL TEMP - HVAC $ 2436155 $ 2436155 § -
LOBAR - GENERAL CONSTRUCTION 17,308,396 17,306,396 -
EASTERN AIR BALANCE CORP 196,780 196,780 -
SINGER EQUIPTMENT 526,902 526,902 -
TOTAL $ 20,466,233 § 20,468,233 § -
STADIUM
PAGODA ELECTRICAL $ 293,500 $ 217,755 % 75,745
LANDTEK GROUP 1,771,045 213,885 1,557,160
TOTAL $ 2064545 § 431640 $ 1,632,905
GRAND TOTAL $ 22,530,778 $ 20,897,873 $ 1,632,805
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Short-term debt
Inferfund receivables and payables

The following interfund receivables and payables were in existence on June 30, 2010:

INTERFUND  INTERFUND
RECEIVABLES PAYABLES

General Fund $ - % 1,850
Special Revenue (Capital Reserve) Fund - -
Special Revenue (Athletic) Fund - -
2008 Construction Fund - -

Enterprise (Food Service) Fund 1,850 -
Agency (Activity) Fund - -
TOTAL $ 1,850 $ 1,850

Interfund Transfers

The District also made the following interfund transfers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010:

TRANSFER IN TRANSFER OUT

| General Fund $ 27§ 2,494,027
| Food Service Fund - -
1 Athletic fund 462,000 -
‘ 2008 Construction Fund - 27
! Captial Reserve Fund 2,032,027

Activity Fund - -
TOTAL $ 2494054 $ 2,494,054

Long-term liabilities

Long-term liability batances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, were:
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~ AMOUNTS
BEGINNING ENDING  DUE WITHIN
BALANCE  ADDITIONS  REDUCTIONS  BALANCE _ _ ONE YEAR

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Debt:
Bonds and notes payable; -

Capital Projects $ 40178444 § 22943374 § 25369584 $ 37,752,234 § 23,290,000
Other than capital projects - - - - -
Capital Leases - - - - -
Total general obligation debt 40,178,444 22,943,374 25,369,584 37,752,234 23,280,000

- Other liabilities:
Vested employee benefits:

Vacation pay 38,269 33,940 - 72,209 41,419
Sick pay 858,747 - B7,764 - 770,983 75,059
Net OPEB Obligaticn 454 550 240,058 - 694,608 -
Derivative Instrument Liability - 2,868,762 - 2,868,762 -
Totaf other liabilities 1,351,566 3,142,760 B7,764 4,406,562 116,478
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY
LLONG-TERM LIABILITIES " $ 4,530,010 § 26,086,134 $ 25457348 § 42,158,796 § 23,406,478
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Other liabilities:
Vested employee benefits
Net QPEB Obligation $ 21,018 § 13,427 $ - § 34,445 §
Sick pay 29153 - 621 28,532
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES $ 50171 § 13,427 § 621 § 62,977 § -

Payments on bonds and notes are made by the general fund. Vested employee benefits will be liquidated
by governmental and proprietary funds. The School District currently does not have any bonds or notes
payable in business-type activities.

Tota!l Interest paid and accrued during the year:

EXPENSE PAID
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General obligation debt $ 2302277 % 1,633,110
Short-term borrowings - -
TOTAL INTEREST FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 2,302,277 % 1,633,110

General Obligation Bonds — Series of 2007

On March 15, 2007, the District issued $6,815,000 of General Obligation Bonds — Series of 2007. The
purpose of this issue is to advance refund the Series of 2002 General Obligation Bonds and paying costs
and expenses of financing. In accordance with the Local Governmental Unit Debt Act, a Sinking Fund has
been established with the paying agent. The interest rates range from 3.55% to 3.70%, with total interest
indebtedness of $1,224,321. The bonds mature from May 1, 2008 to May 1, 2015.
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The debt service requirements on this bond issue at June 30, 2010, are:

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL - INTEREST

2010-11 $ 845,000 % 166,323
2011-12 880,000 135,902
2012-13 810,000 103,783
2013-14 945,000 70,563
2014-15 875,000 36,075

Sub-Total $ 4,555,000 §$ 512,651

Unamortized Premium -

Unamortized Discount (1,089)

Unamortized Deferred Amt. (136,991)

TOTAL QUTSTANDING $ 4,416,920

General Obligation Bonds — Series of 2009

On February 27, 2009, the District issued $6,355,000 of General Obligation Bonds — Series of 2009. The
purpose of this issue is to refund the outstanding General Obligation Bonds — Series of 2003, and to pay
the related costs of issuance. In accordance with the Local Governmentat Unit Debt Act, a sinking fund
has been established with a paying agent. The interest rate ranges from 2.50% to 3.20% payable on
May 1, and November 1, each year. Total interest indebtedness is $957,285.14. The bonds mature from
May 1, 2009 to May 1, 2018. The debt service requirements on this bond issue at June 30, 2010, are:

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2010-11 $ 600,000 $ 156,800
2011-12 615,000 141,800
2012-13 635,000 123,450
2013-14 655,000 104,400
2014-15 - 670,000 84,750
2015-18 2,125,000 137,440
Sub-Total $ 5,300,000 $ 748,840
Unamortized Deferred
Amount on Refunding (141,445)
Unamortized Premium 32,193

TOTAL OUTSTANDING § 5,190,748

General Obligation Bonds — Series A of 2009

On May 1, 2009, the District issued $7,400,000 of Generat Obligation Bonds — Series A of 2009. The
purpose of this issue is to provide funds to (1) finance a current refunding of the Series A of 2003
outstanding bonds; (2) finance the refunding of the outstanding 2008 Bank Note; and (3) to pay the related
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costs of issuance. |n accordance with the Local Governmental Unit Debt Act, a sinking fund has been
established with a paying agent. The interest rate ranges from 2.00% to 3.75% payable on May 1, and
November 1, each year. Total Interest indebtedness is $1,561,551.45. The bonds mature from May 1,
2010 to May 1, 2020. The debt service requirements on this bond issue at June 30, 2010, are:

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2010-11 $ 455,000 % 209,385
2011-12 460,000 201,422
2012-13 475,000 192 222
2013-14 490,000 182,722
2014-15 500,000 168,023
2015-20 4,650,000 407,853
Sub-Total $ 7,030,000 $ 1,361,627
Unamortized Deferred
Amount on Refunding : (417,801)
Unamortized Discount (25,481)
TOTAL OUTSTANDING § 6,686,718

General Obligation Notes — Series of 2009

On May 15, 2009, the District issued $22,390,000 of General Obligation Notes — Series of 2008, The
purpese of this issue is to refund the outstanding General Obligation Bonds ~ Series of 2005, and to pay
the related costs of issuance. In accordance with the Local Governmental Unit Debt Act, a sinking fund
has been established with a paying agent. The interest rate is fixed at 2.00% per annum until May 15,
2010, at which time the Note is due. On April 27, 2010 this Note was paid in full.

General Obligation Bonds — Series of 2010

On April 27, 2010, the District issued $22,390,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010. Proceeds
of the bonds to be used as follows: (1) to refund the outstanding General Obligation Notes — Series of
2009; and (2) to pay related costs of issuance. Interest on bonds maturing on June 1, 2010 are fixed at
1.5%. Interest on the bonds maturing on May 16, 2010, shall be fixed at 1.5% for the first quarterly
interest period. The rate of interest on the three successive quarterly interest periods shall be 1.5%, plus
10% of SIFMA rounded to the nearest one hundredth of a percent, and for the first quarterly interest peried
the rate shall be 1.56%, plus 20% of SIFMA rounded to the nearest one hundredth of a percent. The
outstanding debt service requirements at June 30, 2010, are!

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2010-11 $ 21,390,000 $ 345,096
Unamoritzed Premium 167,848

TOTAL OUTSTANDING §$ 21,657,848
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Interest Rate Swap

Objective of the interest rate swap. As a means to lower its borrowing costs, when compared against
fixed-rate bonds at the time of issuance in May 13, 2005, the School District entered into an interest rate
swap in connection with its $25,000,000, Series of 2005 variable-rate general obligation bonds. The
intention of the swap was to effectively change the School District’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a
synthetic fixed rate. During the 2008-2009 fiscal year, the outstanding bonds of this issue were refunded
with a General Obligation Note — Series of 2009. During the 2009-2010 fiscal year, the outstanding
General Obligation Notes — Series of 2009, were refunded with the General Obligafion Bonds — Series of
2010. The interest rate swap remains in effect.

Terms. The Bonds mature by May 6, 2011, but the related swap agreement matures on May 15, 2025,
and the swap's original notional amount was $25,000,000. The swap was entered into on May 13, 2003.
Starting on May 15, 2006, the notional value of the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt
begin to decline. Under the swap, the School District pays the counterparty (Royal Bank of Canada) a
fixed payment of 3.68% and receives a variable payment computed as 67% of the London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR). Conversely, the new bonds have an initial fixed rate of 1.5%, plus 10% of SIFMA
for three quarters, and 20% of SIFMA for the last quarter.

Fair Value. The swap had a negative fair value of $2,868,762 as of June 30, 2010. The swap’s negative
fair value may be countered by a reduction in total interest payments required under the variable-rate
bonds, creating a lower synthetic interest rate. Because the coupons on the government's variable-rate
bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a corresponding fair value increase. The
fair value was determined by the financial advisor.

Interest Rate Risk. As of June 30, 2010, the School District was exposed to credit risk because the swap
had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes
positive, the School District would not be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value.
The swap counterparty was rated Aa2 by Moody's, AA- by Standard & Poor’'s and AA by Fitch.

Credit Risk. The Risk is associated with the swap agreement if the counterparty to the transaction does
not make good on its promise to pay the government.

Basis Risk. The swap exposes the government to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and
BMA converge, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds, The effect of this difference in basis is indicated
by the difference between the intended synthetic rate and the synthetic rate as of June 30, 2010. If a
change occurs that results in the rates’ moving to convergence, the expected cost savings may not be
realized. As of June 30, 2010, the fixed rate was 1.5%, whereas 67% of LIBOR was 0.224%.

Termination Risk. The School District or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to
perform under the terms of the contract. ' The swap may be terminated by the School District, if the
counterparty's short-term debt credit rating is withdrawn or reduced to a rating below P-1 for Moody’s and
the rating by S&P is withdrawn or reduced to a rating that is below A-1. If the swap is terminated, the
variable-rate bond would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of termination the
swap has a negafive fair value, the School District would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal
to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. Using rates as of June 30, 2010, debt service requirements of the
fixed rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for their term,
are as follows. As rates vary, fixed rate note interest payments and net swap payments will vary.
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SERIES OF 2010 BONDS & FIXED PAYOR SWAP

INTEREST RATE
FISCAL JY'JE‘QF;GE NDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST SWAPS, NET TOTAL
2010-11 $ 21,390,000 $ 345,096 % 632,507 $ 22,367,603
2011-12 - - 694,191 694,191
2012-13 - - 656,044 656,944
201314 - - 618,154 618,154
2014-45 - - 577,646 577,646
2015-20 - - 2,218,141 2,218,141
2020-25 - - 913,487 - 913,487

TOTAL QUTSTANDING $ 21,390,000 $ 345,096 $ 6,311,070 §$ 28,046,166

Derivative Instruments

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 53, any derivative financial
instruments must be recorded on the government-wide financial statements at fair value for periods
beginning on or after June 15, 2009. The District has one derivative instrument associated with its
General Obligation Bonds — Series of 2010. The fixed payor swap is designed to create a synthetic fixed
rate on the variable rate bond issue by paying the counterparty a fixed rate of 3.68% and receiving 67% of
one month LIBOR. The value of this derivative instrument embedded into the swap is a negative
$2,868,762, at June 30, 2010.

GASB Statement 53 requires the use of hedge accounting, which the net change in fair value represents a
deferred infow or outflow of the hedging derivative instrument reported on the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets. To be considered a hedging derivative instrument, the derivative instrument
must pass an effectiveness test using one of the available methods (consistent critical terms, synthetic
instrument, dollar-offset, and regression analysis). If none of the available methods resuit in the derivative
instrument being effective, then the net change in fair value should flow to the government-wide Statement
of Activities, and the instrument is-considered an investment derivative.

In the first year of implementation of this standard, if the derivative instrument proves ineffective at year
end, the effectiveness tests must also be calculated on the fair values existing at the beginning of the fiscal
year. If those tests prove the derivative instrument was effective at the start of the year, then a prior peried
adjustment must be made to the net assets reported on at June 30, 2009, based on the fair vaiue of the
derivative instrument at that date. The change of fair values occurring during this fiscal year will be
charged to investment income in the Statement of Activities. If those same tests prove ineffective, at both
the start and end of this fiscal year, then the entire fair value of the derivafive instrument will be charged to
investment income for the current fiscal year. The effectiveness tests must be performed at the end of
each future year in which the potential hedging derivative instrument exists.

Based upon the tests of effectiveness conducted by the District's financial advisor for this fiscal year, the
above-mentioned potential hedging derivative instrument is not considered effective for the start or end of
the fiscal year. As such, $2,868,762 is charged against investment income in the government-wide
Statement of Activities.
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Hamburg Area School District
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

L ease Rental Debt

On November 15, 1998, the Berks County Vocational Technical School Authority issued $34,850,000 in
revenue bonds, Series of 1998. The Bonds are being issued under the Municipality Authorities Act of
1945, as amended, and pursuant to the provisions of a Trust Indenture, dated as of November 15, 1998,
between the Authority and Bank of Pennsylvania, a division of Dauphin Deposit Bank and Trust Company,
as trustee. Under the Indenture, the Authority has pledged and assigned to the Trustee the sublease
rentals to be paid pursuant to a Lease and Sublease, dated as of November 15, 1998, between the
Authority, as lessee and sublessor, and Berks Vocational Technical School, a/k/a Berks Career and
Technology Center (BCTC), as lessor and sublessee.

The governing body of the Authority is its Board consisting of sixteen (16) members appointed to
staggered terms of five years by the Antietam School District, with the advice of the joint operating
committee of BCTC.,

BCTC was created and operates under Articles of Agreement by and among sixteen participating school
districts located in Berks County and portions of Montgomery and Chester Counties, Pennsylvania,

Under the Articles of Agreement, dated June 1, 1965, between BCTC and the participating school
districts, the annual operating expenses of BCTC are allocated to and paid by the participating school
districts in proportion to the three-year average daily number of students enrolled by each in BCTC
computed at the end of each school year. Lease rental payments (including payments under the
Sublease) or capital outlays are shared in proportion to each participating school district's market valuation
of taxable real estate to the total valuation of all participating school districts. As a result of this debt, the
participating school districts amended Section 11 of the BCTC’s By-Laws to read: the obligations of each
of the participating school districts to pay its proportionate share of the rentals shall be subject o an annual
appropriation by each schoot district. Any school district that does not budget, appropriate and pay its
proportionate share of the rentals payable hereunder shall lose all of its rights as a participating school
district, including the right to send students to the Center. It is the intent of Hamburg Area School District
to continue to participate.

The proceeds to be realized by the Authority will be used to finance certain capital projects of BCTC,
including renovations, alterations, and additions to the East Campus and West Campus of the Berks
Career and Technology Center, to pay capitalized interest on the Bonds, to fund a debt service reserve
fund and to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

The lease rental debt owed by BCTC to the Authority is equal to the bond principal and interest of the
Authority's revenue bonds. This debt is not considered general obligation debt of the School District. The
bonds mature from June 1, 2002 to June 1, 2019, at interest rates between 3.6% and 5.0%. Since market
values fluctuate year to year, the District's future share of the lease rental debt, as shown below, is an
estimate using current market values:

RENTAL
FISCAL YEAR PAYMENT
2010-11 3 148,500
2011-12 148,906
2012-13 148,995
2013-14 149,023
2014-15 148,968
2015-19 596,006
TOTAL OUTSTANDING $ 1,340,398
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Compensated Absences
Sick-Pay

Under the District's various bargaining agreements and plans, professional and management employees
accumulate unused sick days from year to year. During the employee's tenure, unused sick days are non-
vesting. Upon retirement, these employees are eligible for remuneration for unused sick days under the
following bargaining agreements;

a) Management Employees - each unused sick day times $70.
a) Classified Personnel - each unused sick day times $25.

b) Professional Employees - employees with fifteen (15) or more credited years of service
to the District, shall receive $50 per each unused sick day.

The District maintains a record of each employee’s accumulated sick days and the District has valued the
accumulated sick days that are earned by employees who are eligible to retire. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 16, a long-term liability of $695,924 including FICA tax (net of reimbursement) has been
established within the governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets. A
long-term liability of $28,532 including FICA tax (net of reimbursement) has been established in the
business-type activity column in the statement of net assets. |n addition, liabitities of $66,592, $8,467, and
$28,532, including FICA tax, have been established within the General Fund, Athletic Fund, and Food
Service Fund, respectively. The General Fund and Athletic Fund liability is reflected as a current liability in
the government-wide statement of net assets.

Vacation Leave

Unused vacation leave is paid upon an employee's termination. The District maintains records of each
employee's accumulated vacation days. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, the portion of
vacation pay earned at June 30, 2010, that will use currently available financial resources is $41,419,
including FICA tax and retirement contributions, which has been recorded in the General Fund and as a
current liability within the governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets.
The remaining vacation pay eamed at June 30, 2010, of $30,790, including FICA tax and retirement
contributions (net of reimbursement), is recorded as a long-term liability in the governmental activities
column of the government-wide statement of net assets.

Defined benefit pension plans

Plan Description

Name of plan: The Public School Employees’ Retirement System (the System).
Type of Plan; Governmental cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan.

Benefits: Retirement and disability legislatively mandated ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments, healthcare
insurance premium assistance to qualifying annuitants.

Authority: The Public School Employees’ Retirement Code (Act No. 96 of October 2, 1975, as amended)
(24 PA C.S. 8101-8535).Annual Financial Report: The System issues a comprehensive annual financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan. A copy of
the report may be obtained by writing to Diane J. Wert, Office of Financial Management, Public Schoo!
Employees' Retirement System, P. O. Box 125, Harrisburg, PA 17108-0125. The report is also available
in the publications section of the PSERS website at www.psers.state.pa.us.
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Funding Policy

Authority: The contribution policy is established in the Public School Employees’ Retirement Code and
requires contributions by active members, employers, and the Commonwealth.

Contribution Rafes

Member Contributions: Active members, who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contributed at 5.25
percent (Membership Class TC) or at 6.50 percent (Membership Class TD) of the member's qualifying
compensation. Members who joined the System on or after July 22, 1983 and who were active or inactive
as of July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25 percent (Membership Class TC) or at 7.50 percent (Membership
Class TD) of the member's qualifying compensation. Members who joined the System after June 30,
2001, contribute at 7.50 percent (automatic Membership Class TD). For all new hires and for members
who elected Class TD membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after
January 1, 2002,

Contributions required of employers are based upon an actuarial valuation. For fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, the rate of employer contribution was 4.78 percent of covered payroll. The 4.78 percent rate is
comprised of a pension contribution rate of 4.00 percent for pension benefits and 0.78 or healthcare
insurance premium assistance.

The employer's current year covered payroll was $15,384,832 and total payroll was $15,515,233.

The total employee and employer contributions for this current year were $1,093,951 and $720,971,
respectively.

Other Post Employment Benefits
Plan Description. Hamburg Area School District has two single-employer defined benegfit plans:

1. In accordance with the PA School Code of 1948, as amended, medical coverage is provided to
eligible retirees and spouses with the retiree paying the full active premium rate for coverage until
age 65. This benefit has an implicit rate subsidy based upon GASB Statement No. 43, since the
retiree pays the premium at the insurance carrier's global rate charged to the School District
versus an age-adjusted rate, as defined in the GASB Statement.

2. Final Year of Service increment to eligible employees, who will retire under the auspices of the
Public School Employees Retirement Board. This payment is structured as follows:

Years of Service Payment per Year of Service
15-20 $110
21-30 $140
31+ $170

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost. The first benefit is state mandated via the School Code statute.
The second benefit is determined by confractual agreement between the Board of School Directors and
each eligible class of employees. The District's annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB} cost
(expense) for each plan is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost, each
year, and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. The District's annual OPEB cost for the current year and the related information is as follows:
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Contribution Rates:

Actuarially
_ Determined

School District 5.0%

Plan Members 412
Annual Required Contribution $ 622,008
Interest on net OPEB obligation 25,490
Adjustment to annual required contribution (60,980)

Annual OPEB cost 598,608
Contributions made (343,123)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 253,485
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 475,568
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 729,053

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net
OPEB obligation of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 for the benefits were as follows:

Annual Percentage
Year QOPEB’ of OPEB Cost Net OPEB
ended Cost Contributed Obligation

6/30/2010 $ 596,608 63.3% $ 720,053
6/30/2009 § 585,038 65.5% $ 475,568
6/30/2008 - $ 586,518 53.3% $ 273,788

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the benefits as of June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Years of
State-mandated Service
Healthcare - Increment
: Benefit Benefit
Actuarial accrued liability (a) $ 1,864,962 % 322,974

Actuarial valug of plan assets (b) - -

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (a} - (b)  § 1,864,962 % 322,974

Funded Ratio (b) / (a) : 0.0% 0.0%
Covered payroll 3 14,402,704 $ 13,966,275

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (funding
excess) as a percentage of covered payroll, 12.9% - 2.3%
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the benefits and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress
presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date
and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the district and the plan members to that point. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and
assumptions were as follows:

Years of
State-mandated Service
Healthcare Increment
Benefit Benefit
Actuarial valuatin date 7/1/2009 71112009
Actuarial cost method Unit Credit Unit Credit
Level dollar method  Level dollar method
over a weighted over a weighted
Amottization method average average
Remaining amortization period 3 years 3 years
Asset valuation method pay as you go basis  pay as you go basis
Actuarial assumptions: ,
Investment rate of return 5.0% 5.0%
Projectd salary increases 5.0% 5.0%
Healthcare inflation rate
2009 9.0% N/A
2010 8.0% N/A
2011 7.0% N/A
2012 6.0% N/A
2013 + 5.0% N/A

Note 6 - Risk Management

The District is subject to risk of loss from employee risks, property damage, personal injury, auto
accidents, etc. The District lowers these risks through the purchase of commercial insurance. The
District's workers' compensation policy is a retrospectively rated policy. The final premium is based on
actual payroll for the policy year and is determined by the insurance company. Any settlements received
by the District or its employees did not exceed insurance charges in the last three years.
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Hamburg Area School District
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Note 7 - Fund Balance Reserves/Designations
Reserved Fund Balance

There are no fund balance reserves in any fund.
Designated Fund Balance

The School District has designated $2,060,289 of its general fund’s June 30, 2010 fund balance to cover
future GASB Statement 45 liabilities.

Note 8 - Restricted Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

The components of this restriction in the governmental activities column is total capital assets of
$57,842,347, with related debt of $37,283,207, which includes unamortized bonds discounts, premiums,
issuance costs and deferred refunding charges. The business-type activities column reflects $194,949
invested in capital assets with no related debt.

Other Restrictions
At year end, the District has $360,332 restricted in governmental activities for federal grants.

Note 9 - Cont'ingencies
Grants

The Schoo! District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The
expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and a
condition specified in the grant agreements, and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any
disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the general fund, or other
applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management any such disallowed claims will not have a
material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the School District as of June 30, 2010,

Litigation

The School District is party to legal proceedings. The School District is of the opinion that ultimate
disposition of claims will not have a material effect, if any, on the financial condition of the School District,
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Hamburg Area School District
General Fund
Schedule on Tax Collectors’ Receipts
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

HAMBURG PERRY SHOEMAKERSVILLE
BOROUGH TOWNSHIP BOROUGH

CURRENT REAL ESTATE TAXES
Assessed Value $ 166,687,400 $ 133,933,700 3 48,408,200
Millage Rate 0.02496 0.02496 0.02496
TOTAL 4,160,518 3,342,985 1,208,269
Less: Act 1 Reduction 170,086 133,715 57,189
TOTAL TAXABLE DUPLICATE 3,990,432 3,200,270 1,151,080
Plus -. Additions 2,212 8,894 -
Prior Year Unpaid Additions - -
Penalties 6,955 7,336 2,749
TOTAL TAXES TO BE COLLECTED 3,008,502 3,225,500 ‘ 1,153,829
Less - Discounts 66,647 53,803 19,913
Reductions 3,573 3,022 -
Refunds - - -
Returned to County 190,056 106,813 45,254
Cabela's - - -
Qutstanding - - -
NET CURRENT REAL ESTATE TAXES COLLECTED $ 3,739,323 3 3,060,962 $ 1,088,662
CURRENT INTERIM REAL ESTATE TAXES COLLECTED § 4,806 $ 6,321 $ -

CURRENT PER CAPITA TAXES

No. of Persons Assessed 3,374 1,976 1,098
Tax Rate $ 0 % 10 $ 10
Taxable Valuation 33,740 19,760 10,980
Plus - Additions 700 180 210
Penalties 294 151 95
TAXES TO BE COLLECTED 34,734 20,091 11,285
Less - Discounts 413 272 131
Exonerations 2.310 860 1,170
Refunds - - -
Outstanding 5,270 2,250 ' 1,420
Reductions - - -
NET CURRENT PER CAPITA TAXES COLLECTED $ 26,741 $ 16,709 $ 8,564
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UPPER UPPER
STRAUSSTOWN TILDEN BERN TULPEHOCKEN  WINDSOR
BOROUGH TOWNSHIP TOWNSHIP TOWNSHIP TOWNSHIP TOTAL

$ 11,763,300  §201,991,400 § 88,814,700 § 74,240,900 § 117,858,000 § 843,697,600
0.02496 0.02496 0.02496 0.02496 0,02496 0.02496
293,612 5,041,705 2,216,815 1,863,053 2,941,738 21,058,693
12,997 170,424 88,613 73,730 122,003 828,757
280,615 4,871,281 2,128,202 1,779,323 2,819,733 20,229,936
- 131,132 2,359 32 2,416 147,045
- - . 6,051 - 6,051
496 9,348 8,421 4,569 7,558 45,432
281,111 5,011,761 2,136,082 1,789,975 2,829,707 20,428,484
4,406 84,935 30,868 28,603 46,899 336,164
- 22,812 2,155 4,462 - 36,924
1,751 3,143 2,468 66 2,985 10,413
15,149 266,469 125,762 108,179 98,897 954,579
. 406,442 . - - 406,442
- 997 - - 1,825 2,822
$ 250805 $ 47226963 $ 1975729 $ 1650575 $ 2679101 $ 18,681,120
$ 35 § 3901 § 5186 $ 3512 § 22641 46,402
257 2,875 1,336 1,162 1,931 14,008
$ 10 8 10 § 10 § 10 § 10 3 10
2,570 28,750 13,350 11,620 19,310 140,080
20 260 150 180 170 1,850
29 197 107 93 143 1,109
2,619 29,207 13,607 11,873 19,623 143,039
26 347 172 153 267 1,781
170 2,050 280 370 400 7,610
510 4,560 1,430 1,200 2,110 18,840
- - 440 - 180 620
$ 1,913 § 22,250 11,285 § 10,060 §$ 16,666 § 114,188




Hamburg Area School District

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES

LOCAL SOURCES:
Current Real Estate Taxes
Interim Real Estate Taxes
Public Utifity
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Current Per Capita Taxes - 511
Current Per Capita Taxes - 679

- Qccupational Privilege Tax
Earned Income Tax
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Amusement Taxes
Delinquent Real Estate Taxes
Delinguent Interim Real Estate Taxes
Delinguent Per Capita Taxes - 511
Delinquent Per Capita Taxes - 679
Delinguent OPT Taxes
Interest
Gain on Sale of Investments
Revenue from Local Sources
Revenue Received from 1.S. - State
Fed Rev Rec From QOther Fed Sources
I/U Services - Federal
Rentals
Contributions
Tuition
Summer School
Adult School
Receipts from Other LEA's - Education
All Other Services Provided other LEA's
Miscellaneous
Refunds of Prior Yr. Expenditures

TOTAL LOCAL SOURCE REVENUE

STATE SQURCES:
Basic Subsidy - ESBE
Read to Succeed
Charter Schools
School Performance
Orphan Tuition
Homebound
Vocational Education
Alternative Education
Driver Education
Migratory Children
Special Education

SUB-TOTAL

$ 18,681,120
46,402
29,956
11,158
57,094
57,094

1,644,096
159,129

1,025,558

4,667
4,667

116,541

26,500
679,849
30,595
32,500
3,200

96,769

28,687
34,526

5,692,953
116,467

230,253

11,736
2,730

1,313,853

7,376,992

$

22,771,108
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Hamburg Area Schoel District
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUE (CONT'D)

SUB-TOTAL (CARRIED FORWARD) $ 7,376,992
Transportation 892,204
Rentals 623,137
Health Services - 49,418
State Property Tax Reduction Allocation 828,416
PA Accountability Grants 353,520
Project 720 H. 8. Reform 17,564
Extra Grants -
Dual Enrcliment Grants 18,852
FICA Revenue 570,710
Retirement Revenue 360,959
Classrooms for the Future -
TOTAL STATE SOURCE REVENUE $ 11,091,772
FEDERAL SOURCES:

Title | 383,043

Title | - ARRA 72,625

Title Il 92,482

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - ARRA 765,179

Other Restricted Federal Grants 11,000

Medical Assistance Reimbursement 22,600
TOTAL FEDERAL SOURCE REVENUE 1,346,929
TOTAL REVENUE 35,209,809

Expenditures,

Instruction - Regular 11,962,950
Instruction - Federally Funded Programs 1,320,749
Life Skills Support - Public 692,279
Life Skills Support - PRRI 504,891
Deaf or Hearing Impaired Support 4,161
Blind or Visually Impaired Support ~ 68,044
Speech & Language Impaired 248,839
Emotional Support - Public 538,677
Autistic Support -
Learning Support - Public 1,018,592
Gifted Support 150,348
Physical Support -
Multi-Handicapped Support -
Early Intervention Support 16,350
Other Support 26,327

SUB-TOTAL 16,562,207
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Hamburg Area School District
General Fund
“Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
' For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SUB-TOTAL (CARRIED FORWARD) | $ 16,652,207

Agricultural Education 10,116
Industrial Arts Education -
Trade and Industrial Education 85,350
Other Vocational Education 931,545
Drivers' Education 139,829
Summer School 10,243
Homebound Instruction ' 3,983
Adjudicated/Court Placed Programs ' -
Alternative Education Program 150,897
Other Instructional Programs 13,328
Guidance Services 608,849
Psychological Services 121,813
Student Accounting Services 28,754
Other Pupil Persannel Services : ' 167,658
Instructional Staff -
Technolegy Support Services ' 367,415
Computer Assisted Instruction Support Service -
School Library Services 480,955
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services -
Instructional Staff Development Services 20,693
Board Services 51,522
Board Treasurer Services ' -
Tax Assessment and Collection Services 150,629
Staff Relations . -
Legal Services 23,041
Office of the Superintendent Services 387,340
Community Relations Services 5,544
Office of the Principal Services 1,100,298
Other Administration Services -
Medical Services 1,426
Dental Services ' 430
Nursing Services 305,689
Support Services - Business 366,457

SUB-TOTAL 22,086,011
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Hamburg Area School District
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SUB-TOTAL (CARRIED FORWARD)
Financial Accounting Services
Warehousing and Distributing Services
Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services

Supervision of Operation and Maint. of Plant Svcs.

Operation of Building Services
Care and Upkeep of Grounds Services
Care and Upkeep of Equipment Services
Vehicle Operation and Maint. Services
Student Transportation Services
Transportation Services
Supervision of Student Transportation Services
Non-Public Transportation
System-Wide Technology Services
Stafe and Federal Agency Liaison Services
Other Support Services ‘
Student Activities
Community Services _
Site Acquisition Services - Original and Additional
Existing Site Improvement Services
Architecture and Engineering Services - Org/Add.
Existing Building Improvement Services
Debt Service ‘
Refund of Prior Yr. Receipts
TOTAL Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

22,086,011
21,075
9,807
771,884
120,826
1,893,093
10,670
18,527
3,364
1,478,254
61,359
161,435
223,451
14,165
29,717
50,627
34,979

176,213
4,399,664
821

$

31,565,932

$

3,643,877




Hamburg Area School District
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (carried forward)

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES)
Proceeds from Extended Term Financing
Debt Service Fund Transfers
Transfer from Trust Funds
Transfer from Activity Funds
Sale of Fixed Assets
Special Revenue Fund Transfers in
Capital Projects Funds Transfers in
Special Revenue Fund Transfers out
Transfer to Food Service Fund
Debt Service Fund Transfers out
Activity Fund Transfers

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

Special Items
Extraordinary ltems

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2009

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2010

$ 3,643,877
17,649
27
(2,494,027)
(2,476,351)
- (2,476,351)
1,167,526
7,356,002
$ 8,523,528




Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Hamburg Area School District

Food Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES
Lunches
Special Functions
Federal Subsidy

Donated Commodities Received

State Subsidy

State Reimbursement - FICA & Retirement

Other Food Service Revenue
Capital Contributions

t.oss on Disposition of Fixed Asset

Interest )
TOTAL REVENUES

COST OF GOODS SOLD
Inventory - July 1, 2009
Food and Milk
Donated Commeodities
Supplies

~ LESS - Inventory - June 30, 2010
TOTAL COST OF GOODS SOLD

GROSS PROFIT

EXPENSES
Salaries
Benefits
Professional Fees
Travel
Repairs
Food Handling Costs
Depreciation
Purchased Services
Uncapitalized Equipment
Dues and Fees
Other

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

NET ASSETS - ENDING

$ 701,842
27,825
401,576
86,140

46,720

28718

189

917

36,961
432,201
86,140
37,041

{43.941)

442 576
207,076
1,290
1,075
20,132
2,615
21,552
1,886
22,901

$

1,293,897

548,402

745,495

721,103

24,392

470,710

$

495,102

72-



Hamburg Area School District
Food Service Fund
Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due From GCther Funds
Intergovernmental Receivables
Other Receivables
Inventory
- Food
- Supplies
- Federal Commodities
Prepaid Expenses
Equipment (net of accum. Depreciation)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Compensated Absences
Deferred Revenue
Net OPEB Obligation
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

341,673
1,850
17,925

24,513

19,428

194,949

13,219

28,532
15,173
34,445

13,767

3 600,238
105,136
495,102
$ 600,238




Hamburg Area School District
Capital Reserve Fund

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2009

" REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Interest
Interfund Transfers In
TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

EXPENDITURES

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES:
Equipment -

CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Professional Services
Construction Services
Repairs and Mainienance
Rentals
Advertising
Dues and Fees

OTHER FINANCING USES
Interfund Transfers Out

'FUND BAILANCE - JUNE 30, 2010

3,560,139
46,224
2,032,027 2,078,251
5,638,390
31,134
227,095
1,244,574
3,150
122
1,495
43,368
- 1,550,938
4,087,452




Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2009

Ramburg Area School District
Athletic Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Interest

Gate Receipts

Tournament Entry Fees

Playoff Proceeds

Fees

Facility Rentals

Donations

Miscellaneous

FICA Revenue

Retirement Revenue

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets

Transfer from General Fund
TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

EXPENDITURES
Salaries
Medical Benefits
Social Security
Retirement
Unemployment Compensation
Workers' Compensation
Other Professional Services
Advertising
Security
Repairs and Maintenance
insurance
Transportation
Travel
Supplies
Gasoline
Eguipment
Miscellaneous
Dues and Fees

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2010

$

172
37,357
6,850
180
3,320
2,400
3,040
3,614
10,412
4,342

462,000

$

34,639

533,697

272,088
17,407
20,806

8,685
1,707
57,641
634
4,803
7,851
5,400
38,166
7,404
60,840
169
9,049
4,551
11,673

568,336

530,774

$

37,562




Hamburg Area School District
2008 Construction Fund
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2009

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer from Capital Project Fund $
Interest '

27

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

EXPENDITURES

INSTRUCTIONAL.:
Equipment

SUPPORT SERVICES:
Bond Issue Costs
Repairs and Maintenance
Supplies

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES:
Supplies

CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Professional Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Advertising
Insurance
Travel
Supplies
Construction Services
Equipment
Miscellaneous

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfer to General Fund
Transfer to Capital Project Fund

27

27

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2010




Hamburg Area School District
2010 GOB Bond Fund
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2009 $ -
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Proceeds from Refunding of Bonds $ 22,390,000

Bond Premium 168,538

Interest - 22,558,538
TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE 22,658,538
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
SUPPORT SERVICES:

Professional Services ' 151,841

Insurance -

Printing 8,250
DEBT SERVICE:

Bond Principal 7,030

Bond Interest 1,417

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Bond Discount
Payment to Refunded Bonds Escrow Agent 22,390,000 22 558,538

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 20, 2010 $ -
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Hamburg Area School District
Schedule on General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2007
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

FISCAL INTEREST '

YEAR RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL
2010-11 3.60 166,323 845,000
2011-12 3.65 135,802 880,000
2012-13 3.65 103,783 910,000
2013-14 3.65 70,568 945,000
2014-15 3.70 36,075 975,000

TOTAL OUTSTANDING $ 512,651 § 4,555,000

Schedule on General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2009
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

FISCAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL
YEAR RATE INTEREST AMOUNT
2010-11 2.50 156,900 - 600,000
2011-12 3.00 141,900 615,000
2012-13 3.00 _ 123,450 635,000
2013-14 3.00 104,400 655,000
2014-15 2.50 84,750 670,000
2015-16 3.20 68,000 685,000
2016-17 3.20 46,080 710,000
2017-18 3.20 23,360 730,000
TOTAL OUTSTANDING $ 748,840 $ 5,300,000

Schedule on General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2009
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

FISCAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL
YEAR RATE INTEREST AMOUNT
2010-11 1.75 208,385 455,000
201112 2.00 201,422 460,000
2012-13 2.00 192,222 475,000
2013-14 3.00 182,722 490,000
2014-15 2.70 168,023 500,000
2015-16 3.00 154,522 1,250,000
2016-17 3.20 117,023 1,300,000
2017-18 3.50 75,423 . 1,010,000
2018-19 : 3.60 40,072 535,000
2019-20 3.75 _ 20,813 555,000
TOTAL OUTSTANDING $ 1,361,627 $ 7,030,000




Hamburg Area School District
Schedule on General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2010
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

FISCAL INTEREST
YEAR RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL
2010-11 Variable 3 345,096 $ 21,390,000




SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



sy

2z
z'b

~
NNNNN

S310NLOCT

oo 0%E 3 @obogre  © DOGoEFZ  § FoCTIf § IBZZbeC 3
[Cigw) [OEGR) LG B WEL PPy

1€8'208 $ B9B'SES'T $ BOE'SESE  $ VETCHL % ev'esee ¢

(o5 06L LES 0BZ'IES (225 1) 0LL6G15

(@2¥61) VET 78 P=A L] @esin ovi o8 WIN - OLOE/S - 60O/ WIN
80Z 259'F 159 - &Ft'y YIN - DLIOE/S - 6OMLOML WIN
o'l 0og'ek 0088t - 9£8'9¥ 4-VN  DLOEQ - 60/L0/L wiIN
ge9'l £2E° ¥ foritun - G89'6E WN Q0L - 60/1L0N YN
9L9'vl 922658 9LZ'85¢ - 099'38E J-WIN OL/OEO - 60/LOKL WiN
seg'y ooo'te ooo'th ST Ve T DOC'LL  § DMOS/G-GD/ELIOL  SODZE0-6LO
T oEw  oiew - oisy

= 681 FL B68L 7L - BALFH LED'BZ  $  OWOS/SBOILIL ViN

- 125'62 126'6C - 125'6T 125’6z ¢ OL/OE/BO/LIL YN
PrP'65E g98'8¥6"L 808°BV6°L olg'oslL OvE'0EL')

- B - 0000k 0000k 000'0L $  B0/0E/ - BO/LO/L WIN

- €912 £0L°L - €9l §50'8 §  OLOE/9 - BO/LIL YN

- 685°¢ 665E - BBG'E G8E'9 $  B0/0S/ - 80/L/L WiIN
FAX:Y A §92°28Z GSE'ZIT - SEVLLT S50'82¢ $  LL/OE/6- SO0/LLE WIN

- zeh'eve zTr'Tre - Zev'ere 2ZF'EPE $  OLIOL/O - BO/LIL WiIN

- 6L1'69.2 BLL'S9L - 6L1'G9L 9.1'68L $  OMOB/BO/LIL 8.L001L-92)
0z8'29 z8¥'Z6 €8r'Z6 - 299'¥2 ZBY'Z6E  §  OLIOEIE6O/ILIL 241001-020
- - - S80°'EL S80'EL 165°16 $  BO/OSKBOMLIL 841060-020
(859°55) §Z9'TL S29'2L - €82'TEL ZEYE0Z $  OLOE/G-6O/EHS YBLLO0L-LT)
0ze‘L [ilsl: 4 008'L - [al:1d 008°L $  OLOS/BBO/HL 821001220
- Frs3 22 wa) &9 0001 $  60/02/6-80/ML 821060-L4D
SP06LE 915088 215'08E - LiF 1O gis'oge $ 0L/0S/6-60/ 1L 821001-€10
- $ - $ - $ SLB'L0L & Sig'LolL $ g8Zg'sge ¢ 60/0E/6-80/L/L 8.1080-EL0

0L/0%/8 1V S3uNL INNIATH 60/L0/Z 1Y [FELYERED INNOWY ~doiM3d INVHD HIENWNN
(a3yuz343q)  -laN=gx3a LGESIEFEL)) IVLOL YAy HONONHL
YO aaNuooY HO aanuooY ssvd
HOLNYHO

0L0Z ‘0€ INNF CIANT HVIA TWHSIS
SAUYMY IVHIJ3d 4O STUNLIANILNT 40 FINAIHSS
LIRMLEIT TOOHOS VRV DANEWYH

SQUYMY TVLOL

G65°0L

WiIN
£85°0L
WiIN
SEG0L

006

68T’ L}

Loz it

L20¥8

98LV8
8L v
l6E'¥8
LZ0ve

vEE¥R
L9E°v8
L9E'v8
6BEb8
oLove
oLx¥e
0Lyre
oLO'¥8

HIEANN

v¥ado

SCAEVAY Y3034 IVi0L

FHVHS VLS 8837

FANLTININOV 40 INFWLEVLIT "S'N TVLOL

- - w

HVOEYT 40 LNSWINVYLIT 'S'N IVLOL

NOILYONA3 40 LNJWLHYJEA "S'N TvLl0l

E[[e ]
J2¥NOS

FYVHS TLVIS-S ‘SUVHS TVAIFATS-d “LOTYIONFI “LO3HI0- :30MN0S

SILIAOWWOD vaASN
FHENLINDEOY 40 INSWLEvd3a
¥d IH1 HONOCWHL g38Svd

WYHDO0Hd LSVINYIHE
WYHBO0Hd LSYIMYIHE
HINM TOOHIS TYNOILYN
HONMT TOOHJS TYNOILYN
NOILVSNas 40 1930

“Wd JHL HONOYHL a3ssvd
SENLTNOESOV 40 Id3a s N

VIAREWY 9AH3S 2 NYval
NOILYONAa3 40 INSWINVLS3a
‘Vd 3HL HONOJWHL GIsSSvYd

SADINEIS ALINNWWOD 7 TYNOILYN H0Qd NQILYHOJLHOD

YHHY - HLNOA Y3WWNS - SILIAILDY HLNOA VIM
QuvYOd LNJW.LSIANI
FOUOIHUOM ALNNOD SMHIE HONOYHL O35Svd

183M 133H LS TIVM - AVM JHL av31 103roud
ALISHIAINN 31V1S NN3d

H2NOHHL d3ssvd

HOEYT 40 LNTWLHEYJAA SN

8 V30 - ANYADINIA

‘T ANSHOITIV SHL HONO™WHL Q3S8Y!

STO0HOS 3394 9Nya

S1C0HOS 3344 9Nad

VY34l - veuy

wvadl

‘M1 ALNNOD SME38 3HL HONOYHL g35Svd

aNNd NOLLVZIMTIEYLS TYDSIH LV.LS vHdy - v3s3
ALITYND Y3HOVAL DNINOHdWI W1l 1411 - v3S3
ALITYND ¥3HOVYIL ONINOHdWI Wil 31LIL - w353

| LI VEY - v3S3

QAYMY LINIJWIAIIHDY JINIGVYIY - v3E3
AQYYAY INIWIAIIHOV DINTAVIY - w353

13LIL - v383

13711l - v3s3

NOILYONg3 40 INTW1IEVdSa

‘¥d 3HL HONOYHL O3SSvd
NOILYDNaT 30 INGWLNYLIa S N

FILIL 1D3rOud
MHOLNYYD TVHIAd3d



Hamburg Area School District
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the year Ended June 30, 2010

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting for all federal awards charged to governmental funds and on the accrual basis of
accounting for all federal awards charged to proprietary funds, as contemplated by accounting principles,
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Note 2 - Organization and Scope

The District recognized 5.8% of its total general fund revenue in federal awards and 37.7% of its total
enterprise fund revenue. '

Note 3 - Program Disclosure — Footnotes

1.

The federal awards passed through the Berks County Intermediate Unit, and the Allegheny
Intermediate Unit, under the U.S. Department of Education heading, are part of a consortium
of participating school districts. In accordance with directions from the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, these awards are reported on the basic financial statements as local source
revenue.

The Title | grants using CFDA No. 84.010, under the U.S. Department of Education heading,
are part of a cluster program in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement with ARRA-Title | grants using CFDA No. 84.389, under the U.S. Department of
Education heading. In addition, the IDEA grants using CFDA No. 84.027, under the U.S.
Department of Education heading, are part of a cluster program in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 Compliance Statement with ARRA-IDEA grants using CFDA No. 84.391,
under the U.S. Department of Education heading.

The federal awards passed through Penn State University and Berks County, from the U.S.
Department of Labor, are reflected as local source revenue on the basic financial statements.

The District received non-monetary assistance from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, of
$86,140 in the form of commodities. These commodities are valued at US.DA's
approximate costs. During the 2009-10 fiscal year, the District used $84,234 in
commodities and established a year-end inventory of $19,428 at June 30, 2010.

The amount recognized as revenue in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards,
under the U.S. Department of Agriculture heading, represents the commodities used versus
the commodities received, which are recognized as revenue in the basic financial
statements. '

The National School Lunch, National School Breakfast, and Donated Commodities
programs, under the U.S. Department of Agriculture heading, are considered a cluster
program in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement.

The programs reporting this footnote are grants received using funds from the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT RECONCILIATION

General Fund Federal Source Revenues $ 1,346,929
Federal Grants in Local Sources 579,849
Food Service Fund Faderal Revenue . 4B7.716
Total Federal Revenue, per financial statements 2,514,484
l.ess - Medlcal Access (22,600)
Change in Donated Commedities e (1908)

Federal Revenue on SEFA $ 2,489,988
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Board of School Directors
Hamburg Area School District
Windsor Street

Hamburg, PA 19526

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparison statement of
Hamburg Area School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise
Hamburg Area School District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 12, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards, generally accepted
in the United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits in Govemiment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Hamburg Area School District's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Hamburg Area School District's intemal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamburg Area School District's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a fimely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Hamburg Area Schoo! District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. '

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. VWe did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hamburg Area School District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed fests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and

1825 Franklin Street

Northampton, Pennsylvania 18067 - 1573
tele} 610/ 262/ 1280 fax} 610/ 262/ 1756
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Hamburg Area School District

material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards. '

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Hamburg Area School District in a separate
letter dated December 12, 2010.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of School Directors,
others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be,
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

#M «"WA,Z&Q ,

December 12, 2010
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Board of School Directors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Compliance

We have audited Hamburg Area School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and materiat effect on each of Hamburg Area School District's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. Hamburg Area School District's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Hamburg Area School District's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Hamburg Area School District's compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements, referred to above,
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program, occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hamburg Area School Districts compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determinafion of Hamburg Area School District’'s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Hamburg Area School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Hamburg Area School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing the audit, we considered Hamburg Area
School District's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and repori- on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Hamburg Area School District's internal control over compliance.

1825 Franklin Street

Northampton, Pennsylvania 18067 - 1573
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Hamburg Area School District

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of School Directors,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be,
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

d_.._‘_ 'Jﬁ.w.,el;‘z%: /pi( .

December 12, 2010
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Hamburg Area School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section | - Summary of Auditor Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unquaiiﬁéd
Internal control over financial reporting:

+ Material weakness(es) ldentified? [lyes [Xno

+ Significant Deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? . [Jyes [X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial [Jyes [Kno
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

« Material weakness(es) ldentified? [lyes Dno
“»  Significant Deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? : Oyes X none reporte_d

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section
510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? [1yes no

Identification of major program;

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.010, 84.389 Title | Cluster
84.394 State Fiscal Stabilization Fund
84.027, 84.391 ' IDEA Cluster

Percentage of programs tested to total awards 74.1%

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

type A and type B program: $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes [Ino
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Hamburg Area School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section Il - Financlal Statement Findings

There were ne findings discovered, relating to the financial statements, which are required to be reported
in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards.

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

There were nb findings discovered, relating to the federal awards, which are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Section 510.

Audit Follow-Up Procedures

We did not perform any follow-up procedures, since there were no findings from the previous year.
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